








  CC:1 
   

CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

July 12, 2016 
 
The Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors was called to order at 6:32 p.m. by President Dains 
and roll was called. Present were: 
 

Allen B. Dains, President 
Caryl F. Sheehan, Vice President 

  Raymond A. Riehle, Director 
Robert A. Churchill, General Manager 
Hilary M. Straus, Assistant General Manager 
Paul A. Dietrich, Project Manager 
David M. Gordon, Operations Manager 
Susan K. Sohal, Accounting Supervisor 
Beth Shockley, Management Services Specialist / Deputy Board Clerk  
Brian M. Hensley, Water Quality Supervisor / Chief Operator 
 

   
VISITORS: 

Nicholas L. Spiers, Water Distribution Specialist 
Robert Swartz, Regional Water Authority Manager of Technical Services 

  
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
 
Director Dains led the Pledge of Allegiance, followed by a moment of silence for the fallen Dallas Police 
Officers. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 

 There was no Public Comment. 
 
PRESENTATIONS: 
 
RWA Regional Reliability Study 

Robert Swartz, Technical Services Manager for the Regional Water Authority, provided the 
CHWD Board of Directors with an overview of RWA’s Regional Water Reliability Study. 
Swartz explained why RWA is undertaking this Plan preparation as called for in RWA’s 2013 
Strategic Plan.  The drought has highlighted significant threats to local water resources and 
the Plan could help protect long-term water resources in the region. Swartz then presented 
some key elements that would be anticipated to be included in the Plan and expected 
outcomes, including a Regional Water Bank. Swartz concluded by providing an overview of 
the Plan development’s budget and anticipated cost to each participating agency, including 
CHWD. CHWD’s Phase 1 share of cost is anticipated to be $9,600, with a not-too-exceed cost 
of $16,000. Next steps include RWA sending out Project Agreements to participating 
agencies to execute. The Regional Water Reliability Plan is anticipated to take about two 
years to complete, with related and concurrent projects of a Regional Model Development and 

 



 

-2- 
 

Regional Water Bank being completed in a three to four year time frame. The CHWD Board 
indicated interest in CHWD participating in this RWA initiative.  

 Mr. Swartz left the meeting at 7:25 PM. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 
President Dains asked for consideration and/or approval of the Consent Calendar consisting of the 
following action or information items:  
 

Minutes of the Regular Meeting – June 14, 2016. 
Minutes of the Special Meeting – June 26, 2016. 
Revenue Analysis Report for June 2016. 
Assessor/Collector’s Roll Adjustment for June 2016. 
Treasurer’s Report for June 2016. 
Treasurer’s Report of Fund Balances for June. 
Operations Budget Analysis for June 2016. 
Capital Improvements Budget Analysis for June. 
Payables for June. 
CAL–Card Purchases for June 2016. 
 
Summary of 2016 Directors, Officers and Employees Training, Seminars and Conference 
Expenses.  
 
 

Administration Building Improvements Project 
GM Churchill presented an informational report on the status of the Administration Building 
improvements Project. Upon issuance of a building permit from the City of Citrus Heights on 
April 15, 2016, construction of the Administration Building office addition by Kaler-Dobler 
Construction began.  Construction is now substantially complete with final inspections and 
approval on June 1, 2016 by the City of Citrus Heights and Sacramento Metro Fire District.  
Minor cosmetic corrections remain prior to final acceptance by the District.  It is anticipated that 
Final Acceptance and a Notice of Completion will be brought forward to the Board of Directors 
on August 9, 2016.  Furniture delivery is expected in July. 
 

Customer Account Deposit Policy Amendments 

 AS Sohal and AGM Straus requested the Board amend Accounts Receivable Policy 7120 – 
Customer Account Deposits.  Due to many homes ending up in the possession of banks/lending 
institutions and/or third party representatives the District has found that many properties that have 
not been adequately managed, leaving damaged meters (cut or unlocked) and/or bills for usage 
unpaid. It has been the practice of CHWD to, in a few cases, absorb those costs, but in most cases 
in the absence of any other cost recovery method, to place the resulting cost burden on the new 
property owner/customer to pay.  To address the liability to the District and/or new owners, staff 
is proposing that Accounts Receivable Policy 7120 – “Customer Account Deposits” be updated. 
The policy amendments accompanying this staff report (with changes highlighted) provide for the 
District to collect a deposit on the account from third party owners and/or their representatives. 
The proposed amount of the deposit to collect, currently $170, is specified in the current year’s 
adopted Water Rates, Miscellaneous Charges and Fees, and is subject to change when the Fee 
Schedule is updated and adopted by the Board typically updated annually in conjunction with the 



 

-3- 
 

budget adoption.  Based on a history of liabilities of this type, staff feels that the current deposit 
charge should cover most of the potential costs. It should be noted that the collection of a deposit 
does not preclude the District from billing a third party and/or a third party representative for the 
total cost of a liability in excess of the deposit.   

  
  Capital Nursery Plaza Easements Acceptance 

PM Dietrich requested the Board adopt Resolutions 16-2016, 17-2016 and 18-2016 accepting 
three (3) easements from Sunrise Madison Retail, LLC and Resolution 19-2016 accepting one (1) 
easement from Singlewood, LLC on portions of the Capital Nursery Plaza.  Site improvements to 
the Capital Nursery Plaza required the installation of new water distribution mains, water services 
and fire protection facilities to provide water service to the site.  Easements for the water facilities 
was granted by Sunrise Madison Retail, LLC and Singlewood, LLC at no cost to the District. 

  

 
CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-2016 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT 

ACCEPTING AN EASEMENT FROM 
SUNRISE MADISON RETAIL, LLC 

FOR WATER DISTRIBUTION FACILITIES WITHIN 
7945 MADISON AVENUE, CAPITAL NURSERY PLAZA 

 
Whereas SUNRISE MADISON RETAIL, LLC for a valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby 
acknowledged, does hereby grant to CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT, a political subdivision 
of the State of California formed pursuant to Division 11 of the Water Code, a right-of-way and non-
exclusive easement to construct, reconstruct, operate, maintain and/or repair water pipelines together 
with any and all appurtenances appertaining thereto; together with the perpetual right of ingress thereto 
and egress there from for the purpose of exercising and performing all of the rights and privileges 
granted herein;  said pipelines and appurtenances to be of such size(s) and character as the grantee may 
determine, on, over, across and under all that certain real property, situate in the County of Sacramento, 
State of California particularly described as follows: 
 
Being portions of Parcel 1, as shown on Parcel Map “PM 14-02”, recorded in Book 226 at Page 2, 
Sacramento County Records, being more particularly described as follows: 
 
PARCEL X 
 
Beginning at the southeast corner of said Parcel 1, said Point of Beginning also being on the 
northerly right-of-way line for Madison Avenue, a public road; thence from said Point of 
Beginning along the east line of said Parcel 1 North 01°32’55” West 10.00 feet; thence 
leaving said east line South 88°26’39” West 40.00 feet to the west line of said Parcel 1; thence 
along the west line of said Parcel 1 South 01°32’55” East 10.00 feet to the northerly line of 
Madison Avenue; thence along said northerly line North 88°26’39” East 40.00 feet to the 
Point of Beginning for this description. 



 

-4- 
 

 
PARCEL Y 
 
Beginning at an angle point in said Parcel 1, said Point of Beginning being the westerly 
terminus of the course designated “South 66°10’16” East 44.19 feet”; thence from said Point 
of Beginning along the last said course South 66°10’16” East 11.64 feet; thence leaving the 
boundary line of said Parcel 1 the following three (3) courses and distances: 
 

1. North 24°18’12” East 21.24 feet; 
2. North 1°26’17” West 134.52 feet; 
3. South 88°33’43” West 88.74 feet to the west line of said Parcel 1: 

 
Thence along the perimeter of said Parcel 1 the following three (3) courses and distances: 
 

1. South 1°32’55” East 9.21 feet; 
2. North 88°27’05” East 46.62 feet to the beginning of a tangent curve to the right having 

a radius of 32.00 feet; 
3. Along said tangent curve to the right through a central angle of 35°24’23” an arc 

length of 19.77 feet; 
 
Thence leaving said perimeter of said Parcel 1 North 88°33’43” East 8.55 feet; thence South 
1°26’17” East 9.00 feet to the boundary line of said Parcel 1; thence along the perimeter of 
said Parcel 1 the following three (3) courses and distances: 
 

1. Along a curve concave to the southwest having a radius of 32.00 feet, from which the 
center thereof bears South 56°13’10” West, through a central angle of 32°13’55” an 
arc length of 18.00 feet; 

2. South 1°32’55” East 64.18 to the beginning of a tangent curve to the right having a 
radius of 100.00 feet;  

3. Along said tangent curve through a central angle of 25°44’25” an arc length of 44.93 
feet to the Point of Beginning for this description. 

 
PARCEL Z 
 
Commencing at the northwest corner of said Parcel 1; thence from said Point of 
Commencement along the west line of said Parcel 1 South 1°32’55” East 10.79 feet to the 
True Point of Beginning for this description; thence from said True Point of Beginning along 
the following six (6) courses and distances: 
 

1. North 88°33’43” East 269.53 feet; 
2. North 47°15’41” East 6.02 feet; 
3. South 42°44’19” East 34.00 feet; 
4. South 47°15’41” West 27.86 feet; 
5. South 1°32’55” East 217.15 feet; 
6. North 88°33’43” East 31.14 feet to the east line of said Parcel 1: 

 
Thence along said east line of said Parcel 1 South 1°32’55” East 15.00 feet; thence leaving 



 

-5- 
 

said east line of said Parcel 1 the following eleven (11) courses and distances: 
 

1. South 88°33’43” West 85.51 feet;  
2. North 1°26’17” West 32.67 feet;  
3. North 88°33’43” East 15.00 feet; 
4. South 1°26’17” East 17.67 feet; 
5. North 88°33’43” East 24.34 feet; 
6. North 1°32’55” West 242.11 feet; 
7. South 88°33’43” West 245.78 feet; 
8. South 1°26’17” East 7.00 feet; 
9. South 88°33’43” West 10.00 feet; 
10. North 1°26’17” West 7.00 feet;  
11. South 88°33’43” West 4.71 feet to the west line of said Parcel 1:    

 
Thence along said west line of said Parcel 1 North 1°32’55” West 15.00 feet to the Point of 
Beginning for this description. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT accepts said 
Grant of Easement and conveyance and that a certified copy of this Resolution be provided to the 
County of Sacramento to be attached to and recorded with said Grant of Easement in the Office of the 
County Recorder of Sacramento County. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT 
this 12th day of July 2016 by the following vote, to wit: 
 
AYES:  Directors: Dains, Sheehan, Riehle 
NOES:  Directors:  
ABSTAIN: Directors:  
ABSENT: Directors:  
 
SEAL 
   
 ALLEN B. DAINS, President 
 Board of Directors 
 Citrus Heights Water District 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
ROBERT A. CHURCHILL, Secretary 
Citrus Heights Water District 
 
 
 

  
 
 



 

-6- 
 

CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT 
RESOLUTION NO. 17-2016 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT 
ACCEPTING AN EASEMENT FROM 
SUNRISE MADISON RETAIL, LLC 

FOR WATER DISTRIBUTION FACILITIES WITHIN 
5406/5410 SUNRISE BLVD, CAPITAL NURSERY PLAZA 

 
Whereas SUNRISE MADISON RETAIL, LLC for a valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby 
acknowledged, does hereby grant to CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT, a political subdivision 
of the State of California formed pursuant to Division 11 of the Water Code, a right-of-way and non-
exclusive easement to construct, reconstruct, operate, maintain and/or repair water pipelines together 
with any and all appurtenances appertaining thereto; together with the perpetual right of ingress thereto 
and egress there from for the purpose of exercising and performing all of the rights and privileges 
granted herein;  said pipelines and appurtenances to be of such size(s) and character as the grantee may 
determine, on, over, across and under all that certain real property, situate in the County of Sacramento, 
State of California particularly described as follows: 
 
Being a portion of Parcel 2, as shown on Parcel Map “PM 14-02”, recorded in Book 226 at Page 2, 
Sacramento County Records, being more particularly described as follows: 
 
Beginning at the north-west corner of said Parcel 2, said Point of Beginning also being on the 
easterly right-of-way line for Sunrise Boulevard, a public road; thence from said Point of 
Beginning along the north line of said Parcel 2 North 88°33’43” East 12.50 feet; thence 
leaving said north line of said Parcel 2 the following four (4) courses and distances: 
 

1. South 1°35’18” East 5.79 feet; 
2. North 88°33’43” East 130.58 feet; 
3. South 1°26’17” East 5.00 feet; 
4. North 88°33’43” East 23.63 feet to the east line of said Parcel 2; 

 
Thence along said east line South 1°32’55” East 15.00 feet; thence leaving said east line the 
following three (3) courses and distances: 
 

1. South 88°33’43” West 23.66 feet; 
2. South 1°26’17” East 201.87 feet; 
3. North 88°33’43” East 24.05 feet to the east line of said Parcel 2; 

 
Thence along said east line South 1°32’55” East 9.21 feet to the south east corner of said 
Parcel 2; thence along the south line of said Parcel 2 South 88°27’05” West 123.08 feet; 
thence, leaving said south line the following ten (10) courses and distances: 
 

1. North 1°26’17” West 22.00 feet; 
2. North 88°27’05” East 31.00; 
3. South 1°26’17” East 12.61 feet; 



 

-7- 
 

4. North 88°33’43” East 53.02 feet; 
5. North 1°26’17” West 206.87 feet; 
6. South 88°33’43” West 64.04 feet; 
7. South 1°26’17” East 19.90 feet; 
8. South 88°33’43” West 30.00 feet; 
9. North 1°26’17” West 19.90 feet; 
10. South 88°33’43” West 34.00 feet to the easterly right-of-way line for Sunrise 

Boulevard; 
 
Thence along said easterly right-of-way line North 1°35’18” West 20.79 feet to the Point of 
Beginning for this description. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT accepts said 
Grant of Easement and conveyance and that a certified copy of this Resolution be provided to the 
County of Sacramento to be attached to and recorded with said Grant of Easement in the Office of the 
County Recorder of Sacramento County. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT 
this 12th day of July 2016 by the following vote, to wit: 
 
AYES:  Directors: Dains, Sheehan, Riehle 
NOES:  Directors:  
ABSTAIN: Directors:  
ABSENT: Directors:  
 
SEAL 
   
 ALLEN B. DAINS, President 
 Board of Directors 
 Citrus Heights Water District 
 
ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
ROBERT A. CHURCHILL, Secretary 
Citrus Heights Water District 
 

CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT 
RESOLUTION NO. 18 -2016 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT 
ACCEPTING AN EASEMENT FROM 
SUNRISE MADISON RETAIL, LLC 

FOR WATER DISTRIBUTION FACILITIES WITHIN 
7925/7935 MADISON AVE, CAPITAL NURSERY PLAZA 

 
Whereas SUNRISE MADISON RETAIL, LLC for a valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby 



 

-8- 
 

acknowledged, does hereby grant to CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT, a political subdivision 
of the State of California formed pursuant to Division 11 of the Water Code, a right-of-way and non-
exclusive easement to construct, reconstruct, operate, maintain and/or repair water pipelines together 
with any and all appurtenances appertaining thereto; together with the perpetual right of ingress thereto 
and egress there from for the purpose of exercising and performing all of the rights and privileges 
granted herein;  said pipelines and appurtenances to be of such size(s) and character as the grantee may 
determine, on, over, across and under all that certain real property, situate in the County of Sacramento, 
State of California particularly described as follows: 
 
Being portions of Parcel 3, as shown on Parcel Map “PM 14-02”, recorded in Book 226 at Page 2, 
Sacramento County Records, being more particularly described as follows: 
 
PARCEL A: 
 
Beginning at the southeast corner of said Parcel 3, said point also being on the northerly right-
of-way line for Madison Avenue, a public road; thence from said Point of Beginning along 
said northerly right-of-way line South 88°26’39” West 24.00 feet; thence leaving said 
northerly right-of-way line the following four (4) courses and distances; 
 

1. North 1°32’55” West 62.57 feet; 
2. North 88°27’05” East 17.00 feet; 
3. South 1°32’55” East 52.57 feet; 
4. North 88°26’39”East 7.00 feet to the east line of said Parcel 3; 

 
Thence along said east line South 1°32’55” East 10.00 feet to the Point of Beginning for this 
description. 
 
PARCEL B: 
 
Beginning at the most northwesterly corner of said Parcel 3; Thence from said Point of 
Beginning along the northerly line of said Parcel 3 South 66°10’16” East 11.64 feet; Thence 
leaving said northerly line the following six (6) courses and distances: 
 

1. South 24°18’12” West 123.04 feet; 
2. South 1°32’10” East 69.10 feet; 
3. North 88°27’50” East 3.00 feet; 
4. South 1°32’10” East 9.55 feet; 
5. North 88°27’50” East 5.00 feet; 
6. South 1°32’10” East 16.81 feet to the northerly right-of-way line for said Madison 

Avenue; 
 
Thence along said northerly right-of-way line South 88°26’39” West 23.00 feet; thence 
leaving said northerly right-of-way line North 1°32’10” West 98.92 feet; thence North 
24°18’12” East 53.36 feet to a point on the westerly line of said Parcel 3; thence along said 
westerly line North 27°02’12” East 68.13 feet to the beginning of a tangent curve to the left 
having a radius of 100.00 feet; thence along said tangent curve to the left through a central 
angle of 2°50’41” an arc length of 4.97 feet to the Point of Beginning for this description. 



 

-9- 
 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT accepts said 
Grant of Easement and conveyance and that a certified copy of this Resolution be provided to the 
County of Sacramento to be attached to and recorded with said Grant of Easement in the Office of the 
County Recorder of Sacramento County. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT 
this 12th day of July 2016 by the following vote, to wit: 
 
AYES:  Directors: Dains, Sheehan, Riehle 
NOES:  Directors:  
ABSTAIN: Directors:  
ABSENT: Directors:  
 
SEAL 
   
 ALLEN B. DAINS, President 
 Board of Directors 
 Citrus Heights Water District 
ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
ROBERT A. CHURCHILL, Secretary 
Citrus Heights Water District 
 
 

 
CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT 

RESOLUTION NO. 19-2016 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT 

ACCEPTING AN EASEMENT FROM 
SINGLEWOOD, LLC 

FOR WATER DISTRIBUTION FACILITIES WITHIN 
5402 SUNRISE BLVD, CAPITAL NURSERY PLAZA 

 
Whereas SINGLEWOOD, LLC for a valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, 
does hereby grant to CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT, a political subdivision of the State of 
California formed pursuant to Division 11 of the Water Code, a right-of-way and non-exclusive 
easement to construct, reconstruct, operate, maintain and/or repair water pipelines together with any 
and all appurtenances appertaining thereto; together with the perpetual right of ingress thereto and 
egress there from for the purpose of exercising and performing all of the rights and privileges granted 
herein;  said pipelines and appurtenances to be of such size(s) and character as the grantee may 
determine, on, over, across and under all that certain real property, situate in the County of Sacramento, 
State of California particularly described as follows: 
 



 

-10- 
 

Being portions of Parcel 4, as shown on Parcel Map “PM 14-02”, recorded in Book 226 at Page 2, 
Sacramento County Records, being more particularly described as follows: 
 
PARCEL A:  
Commencing at the north west corner of said Parcel 4, said Point of Commencement also 
being located on the easterly right-of-way line for Sunrise Boulevard, a public road, as shown 
on said Parcel Map; thence from said Point of Commencement along the northerly line of said 
Parcel 4 North 88°27’05” East 33.47 feet to the True Point of Beginning for this description; 
thence from said True Point of Beginning, continuing along said north line North 88°27’05” 
East 169.71 feet to the beginning of a tangent curve to the right having a radius of 32.00 feet; 
thence along said tangent curve to the right through a central angle of 35°24’23” an arc length 
of 19.77 feet; thence leaving the boundary of said Parcel 4 South 88°33’43” West 188.26 feet; 
thence North 1°26’17” West 5.55 feet to the True Point of Beginning for this description. 
 
PARCEL B: 
Commencing at the south east corner of said Parcel 4; thence from said Point of 
Commencement along the east line of said Parcel 4 North 27°02’12” East 8.83 feet to the True 
Point of Beginning for this description; thence from said True Point of Beginning, continuing 
along said east line North 27°02’12” East 68.13 feet to the beginning of a tangent curve to the 
left having a radius of 100.00 feet; thence along said tangent curve to the left through a central 
angle of 28°35’07” an arc length of 49.89 feet; thence North 1°32’55” West 64.18 feet to the 
beginning of a tangent curve to the left having a radius of 32.00 feet; thence along said 
tangent curve to the left through a central angle of 32°13’55” an arc length of 18.00 feet; 
thence leaving the boundary of said Parcel 4 the following six (6) courses and distances: 
 

1. South 1°26’17” East 60.80 feet; 
2. South 88°33’43” West 22.00 feet; 
3. South 1°26’17” East 30.00 feet; 
4. North 88°33’43” East 22.00 feet; 
5. South 1°26’17” East 16.30 feet; 
6. South 24°18’12” West 90.93 feet to the True Point of Beginning for this description. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT accepts said 
Grant of Easement and conveyance and that a certified copy of this Resolution be provided to the 
County of Sacramento to be attached to and recorded with said Grant of Easement in the Office of the 
County Recorder of Sacramento County. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT 
this 12th day of July 2016 by the following vote, to wit: 
 
AYES:  Directors: Dains, Sheehan, Riehle 
NOES:  Directors:  
ABSTAIN: Directors:  
ABSENT: Directors:  
SEAL 
   
 ALLEN B. DAINS, President 



 

-11- 
 

 Board of Directors 
 Citrus Heights Water District 
ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
ROBERT A. CHURCHILL, Secretary 
Citrus Heights Water District 

  
 
  ACTION: Director Riehle moved and Director Sheehan seconded a motion to accept the  
   Consent Calendar.  The motion carried 3-0 with all Directors voting yes. 
  

 
PUBLIC HEARING: 
 
Water Quality Public Health Goals  

Water Quality Supervisor Brian Hensley presented the Board for adoption CHWD’s Public 
Health Goals (PHG).  Provisions of the California Health and Safety Code, Section 116470 
(b), specify that public water systems serving more than 10,000 service connections such as 
Citrus Heights Water District (CHWD) (19,610 connections) must prepare a special report by 
July 1, 2010 and every three years thereafter, that gives information on the detection of any 
constituents above the Public Health Goals (PHG) published by the State Office of 
Environmental Health Hazard Assessment (OEHHA) which is part of Cal EPA. This report 
must be provided and made available at a public hearing of the District shortly after said date.  
The law also requires that where OEHHA has not adopted a PHG for a constituent, the water 
suppliers are to use the Maximum Contaminant Level Goals (MCLGs) adopted by United 
States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA). Only constituents which have a California 
primary drinking water standard and for which either a PHG or MCLG has been set are to be 
addressed.  PHGs and MCLGs are not enforceable. The Best Available Technology (BAT) to 
reach such low levels has not been defined and may not realistically be available. Accurate 
cost estimates are difficult, if not impossible, and are highly speculative and theoretical. 
Therefore, they have limited value and may not warrant significant investment of agency time 
and money. 

 
These reports are unique to California. They are required in addition to the extensive public 
reporting of water quality information that California water utilities have been doing for many 
years and in addition to the federally mandated annual Consumer Confidence Reports/Water 
Quality Reports. In compliance with the California Health and Safety Code, the District 
previously prepared a PHG Report dated June 4, 2013, conducted a Public Hearing on June 
11, 2013 and ordered the Report filed. 
President Dains opened the Public Hearing on the PHG at 7:32 PM and requested public 
comments.  
There were no public comments; therefore, the Public Hearing was closed at 7:33 PM. 

 
  ACTION: Director Sheehan moved and Director Riehle seconded a motion to adopt the  

  Districts Public Health Goals.  The motion carried 3-0 with all Directors voting yes. 
 
At 7:35 PM the meeting was adjourned to the CHWD Finance Corporation. 



 

-12- 
 

 
At 7:43 PM the Board of Directors reconvened to the CHWD Regular Board Meeting. 
               

OLD BUSINESS: 
 None 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
Training/Continued Education/Meetings 
 GM Churchill presented an item on upcoming training and continued education events. 
  
CSDA Board of Directors Election 

GM Churchill presented the Board with the Ballot Information and Candidate Information 
Sheets for seat B from the Sierra Network on the Board of Directors for the California Special 
Districts Association (CSDA).  The candidates were as follows: 

• Paul Green, Director: Rio Linda / Elverta Community Water District 

• Gil Albiani, Director: Cosumnes Community Services District 

• Ginger Root, Chief Administrative Officer / Clerk of the Board: Lincoln Rural County 
Fire Protection District  

  
ACTION: Director Riehle moved and Director Sheehan seconded a motion to: Vote for Paul 
Green.  The motion carried 3-0 with all Directors voting yes. 

 
Sacramento County Proposed Trench Restoration 

OM Gordon presented information about the proposed revisions to the Sacramento County 
standard detail requirements for trench restoration.  A consortium of public and private 
utilities have been meeting regularly on this topic.  The proposed revisions would change the 
typical pipeline trench pavement restoration width from 5.3-feet to 12.5-feet and the typical 
water service trench pavement restoration width from 4.8-feet to 30-feet. The Item to be 
brought before the Sacramento County Board of Supervisors was postponed until the May 24, 
2016 meeting and subsequently postponed until the upcoming August 9, 2016 meeting. The 
Board of Supervisors did not want to move for approval without outreach to affected public 
and private utility parties.  The estimated financial impact to the District is as follows: 

 

 2015 CIP Paving Costs Future CIP yearly Costs 

Current Standard $ 263,757 $    625,025 

Proposed Standard $ 840,314 $ 1,957,650 

Difference $ 576,557 $ 1,332,625 

 
Using the 2016 Budget: 
The PROPOSED trench restoration requirements would increase the District’s CIP Budget 
by: 37% 
The PROPOSED trench restoration requirements would increase the District’s Overall 
Budget by: 9% 
The Board requested that a letter to the Board of Supervisors be prepared for the President’s 
signature expressing the Districts concerns and fiscal impacts. 



 

-13- 
 

 
Public Employee Retirement and Succession – Employment Agreement for General Manager 
GM Churchill presented the Board with the General Manager’s Employment Agreement with 
Assistant General Manager Hilary Straus, who has been selected by the Board of Directors to succeed 
Churchill as General Manager.  As a result of an interview process with Assistant General Manager 
(AGM) Hilary Straus on May 10, 2016, the Board of Directors selected Mr. Straus to succeed Mr. 
Churchill as General Manager upon his retirement on November 17, 2016. Additionally on May 10th, 
the Board provided direction to develop a General Manager’s Employment Agreement with AGM 
Straus for Board review/consideration on June 14, 2016 in Closed Session, and for 
discussion/possible action for approval in Open Session on July 12, 2016.  If approved, the 
Agreement term would become effective on November 18, 2016, the day following Churchill’s 
retirement.  In developing the proposed Employment Agreement, the new Department Managers’ 
employment agreement template was used but modified, and some key provisions were incorporated 
from Churchill’s General Manager’s Employment Agreement. Further, special counsel Paul Phillips 
has reviewed and edited the proposed Employment Agreement.   

 
ACTION: Director Sheehan moved and Director Riehle seconded a motion to: Approve the 

terms and condition as presented, and to which Mr. Straus has reviewed and agreed. 
Should the Board approve the Employment Agreement on July 12th, it will be become 
effective upon Churchill’s retirement on November 18, 2016.  The motion carried 3-0 
with all Directors voting yes. 

 
 

PROJECT MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
PM Dietrich presented a report on the following activities during the month of May 2016 by the 
Project Management and Engineering Department.  New values or projects noted in bold italics 
 
ACCEPTED WATER SYSTEMS 
Recent additions to the District’s water distribution system that were constructed by independent 
State Licensed contractors on behalf of private developers / owners, inspected by the District and 
formally accepted: 
Project Count   

 

Facilities Value 

Village at Fair Oaks 
55 Condominiums 
(2015-53) 
 

 1,253 l.f. 
 112 l.f. 
 236 l.f. 
 457 l.f. 
 11 
 8 
 7 
 55 
 1 
 4 
 5 

8-Inch PVC Water Main 
8-Inch DIP Water Main 
6-Inch DIP Water Main 
4-Inch PVC Water Main 
8-Inch Gate Valve 
6-Inch Gate Valve 
Steamer Fire Hydrant 
1-Inch Metered Water Service 
1 ½” Metered Irrigation Service 
1-inch Air/Vacuum Valve 
2-Inch Blow Off Valve 
 

$235,435.00 



 

-14- 
 

 
PROJECTS UNDER CONSTRUCTION BY PRIVATE DEVELOPERS 
Water distribution system facilities currently under construction by independent State Licensed 
contractors on behalf of private developers / owners requiring District inspection: 
 
Project 
 

Location 
 

Status 
 

McDonalds 
 

5402 Sunrise Blvd 30% Complete 

Northridge Grove 
47 Condominiums 
 

5555 Mariposa Ave 30% Complete 

Citrus Heights City Hall 
 

6350 Fountain Square Dr 80% Complete 

Memory Care Facility 6825-33 Sunrise Blvd 70% Complete 
   
Dundee Estates 
3 Lot Subdivision 
(2015-58) 
 

Mariposa Ave @ Highland Ave 98% Complete 

California American Water Co. 

San Juan Avenue Tank - Intertie 
and Water Service 

5444 San Juan Ave 98% Complete 

Capitol Nursery Plaza 
Commercial Center 
(2015-50) 
 

Sunrise Blvd @ Madison Ave Substantially Complete 

Sylvan Middle School 
(2015-63) 
 

7085 Auburn Blvd Substantially Complete 

   
 
CONTRACTOR / DEVELOPER PROJECTS PENDING CONSTRUCTION 
Project 
 

Location Status 

Dignity Health Building 
 

7115 Greenback Ln Awaiting System 
Construction 

Bearpaw Expansion 
Commercial Building 
 

7524 Old Auburn Rd Awaiting System 
Construction 

Louis-Orlando Bus Transfer 
Point 
 

Louis Ln @ Orlando Ave Awaiting System 
Construction 

PROPOSED DISTRICT CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS 
Project Plans and Contracts currently under review and development by the Engineering Department: 



 

-15- 
 

 
Project Location Status 
   
Fair Way Intertie with 
City of Roseville 

9955 Fair Way Agreement – 99% 
Plans – 95% 
Cost Estimate – 90% 
 

Blossom Hill Dr Intertie with 
City of Roseville 
 

Blossom Hill Dr at  
1100 Main Sail Cir 

Agreement – 99% 
Plans – 95% 
Cost Estimate – 90% 
 

Crestmont Ave Intertie with 
City of Roseville 

Crestmont Ave at 
8199 Bonnie Oak Way 

Agreement – 99% 
Plans – 95% 
Cost Estimate – 90% 

   
Baird Way 12” Water Main 
Area West Engineers, Inc. 

Auburn Blvd to Holly Dr 90% Plan Development 
Continues 

 
PROJECTS CONTRACTED BY CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT 
Capital Improvement Projects currently under construction by Citrus Heights Water District 
contractors requiring coordination and inspection by the District: 
 
Project 
 

Location Status 

Mariposa Ave, Limerick Way 
and Dublin Way Water Mains 
KASL Consulting Engineers, Inc. 

Limerick Way to Farmgate 
Way and Eastgate Ave to 
Northeast Circle (south end) 

30% Complete 
 

   
   

CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS PROJECTS 
City of Citrus Heights Projects requiring coordination and inspection by the District: 
None 

 
OPERATIONS MANAGER’S REPORT: 
OM Gordon reported as follows: 
 
A total of 186 work orders were performed during the month of June by field operations crews, 
administration field crews and contractors.  The results of recent bacteriological testing, a total of 72 
samples, have met all California Department of Drinking Water (DDW) requirements.   
 
District-wide water consumption for the calendar year 2016 through the end of June was 1343.76 
acre-feet, a decrease of 29.9% percent compared with the water consumption during the same period 
in 2013. 
 
As of midnight on June 30, 2016, storage in Folsom Reservoir was at 691,561 acre-feet, 71 percent of 



 

-16- 
 

the total capacity of 977,000 acre-feet. This is about 87 percent of historical average for this date.  
This represents a decrease in storage of 134,473 acre-feet in the past month.  
 
Director Dains called a recess to the meeting at 8:22 PM.  
 
PM Dietrich, OM Gordon and AS Sohal left the meeting. 
 
Director Dains reconvened the meeting at 8:30 PM. 
 
DIRECTOR’S AND REPRESENTATIVES REPORTS: 
 

Regional Water Authority (Dains, Churchill)    
   No report. 

Sacramento Groundwater Authority (Sheehan) 
  No report. 

San Juan Water District 
 No report. 
Association of California Water Agencies (Dains) 

  No report. 
ACWA Joint Powers Insurance Authority (Churchill)  

   No report. 
Sacramento Local Agency Formation Commission 

No report.   
City of Citrus Heights 

  No report. 
Chamber of Commerce Government Issues Committee (Straus)   

   No report.  
Other Reports:  

No report. 
 

 
ASSISTANT GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT: 
AGM Straus reported as follows:  
 
Water Efficiency Program activities during the month of June 2016 included: 

• 11 ultra-low-flush toilet rebates for the month of June. A total of $6,600 in rebates have been 
provided to customers during 2016 to date. 
 

• For the period of June 2016, No High Efficiency Clothes Washer (HECW) rebates were 
processed by SMUD for District customers.  
 

• 67 water waste calls were received during the month of June.  13 reports of water waste were 
received through the CHWD’s Drought Resources web page. A total of 43 contacts (mostly 
visits to customers’ homes and phone calls) have been completed based on these reports.   
 

• The June 2016 Residential Gallon per Capita per Day (R-GPCD) was 213.  This information 
is submitted monthly to the State Water Resources Control Board. 
 



 

-17- 
 

• The J. Crowley Group, Inc. submitted the adopted 2015 Urban Water Management Plan to the 
California Department of Water Resources (DWR). The updated plan includes a 
comprehensive assessment and description of the District's water distribution system, water 
demands, water supplies, conservation, 20x2020 analysis and target compliance, demand 
management, and demand-to-supply contingency planning.   

 
Drought Response Plan activities summarized for June are as follows: 

• CHWD’s Water Reduction Target for 2016 has been adjusted by the State Water Resource 
Control Board (SWRCB).  Water reduction targets will be based on a District’s local water 
supply reliability conditions.  
 

• Based on the updated Water Reduction target issued by the SWRCB, CHWD’s 3-year water 
supply reliability analysis indicates the District’s water reduction target is zero. At the June 
14th Board meeting, the Board adopted a Stage 2 Water Alert Modified.  Customers are being 
asked to voluntarily cutback water use by 5%-10% through 2016.   

 
• CHWD is partnering with the City of Citrus Heights to hold an Ecolandscape classes on July 

23rd.  The class will be held at the Citrus Heights Community Center.  The class will cover 
“right plant-right placement” and best irrigation practices for customers.  There will be a 
demonstration on how to convert spray irrigation to drip and water efficient outreach 
materials.  

 

• The Top 20% water reduction campaign is focusing on the 72 no response/non- compliant 
“Bad-Bad’s”.  These are the customers who did not submit a water reduction plan and did not 
meet their water reduction target.  The 72 “Bad-Bads” are being contacted by District staff.  
Customers will be offered a water efficiency review and left with water conservation program 
information and literature. 
 

Paladin Night Patrol began conducting night time water waste monitoring on July 29th, 2015.  Below 
is a chart illustrating the number of incidents reported by category for August 2015 through June 
2016. 
   
                   
                        

Date *Incident Wrong Equipment Theft 

 Report Day Waste  

AUGUST 

2015 108 79 90 1 

SEPTEMBER 

2015 96 47 80 

 

0 

OCTOBER 

2015 46 37 42 0 

NOVEMBER 

2015 69 15 69 0 

DECEMBER 

2015 56 31 54 0 

JANUARY 

2016 32 15 32 0 



 

-18- 
 

FEBRUARY 

2016  29 18 29 0 

MARCH 

2016 34 20 34 0 

APRIL 

2016 16 6 16 0 

MAY 

2016 34 27 30 0 

JUNE  

2016 23 10 23 0 

Totals 543 305 499 1 

 
*A single incident report can include one or more violation categories. One incident report can overlap into multiple categories. 

 
As of July 1, 2016 Staff has suspended Paladin night patrols. The need for night-time water waste 
patrols will be monitored on a monthly basis throughout the summer.  If water waste complaints 
increase throughout the summer, consideration will be given to reinstate the partrols. 
 
 
Stage 2 Water Alert Modified 
At the June 14th Board meeting, the Board adopted a Stage 2 Water Alert Modified.  A Public 
Outreach campaign is being implemented to promote the Stage 2 Water Alert regulations.  The 
messaging is intended to educate District customers about Stage 2 regulations and direct customers to 
our website promoting water efficiency. The following are included in the Public Outreach effort: 
 

• A Direct Mailer promoting the Stage 2 Water Alert: 

• The District’s website 

• Facebook 

• Waterline Newsletter 

• Phone message recording 
 
 
 
GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 

1. Twenty three employees received recognition for superior attendance, outstanding customer 
service and quality of work during the month of June 2016. Directors were provided with a 
list of the employees and items for which each received recognition.  
 

2. A list of the General Manager’s significant assignments and activities was provided. 
 

3. Long Range Board Agenda. 
 

Meeting Date Item Assigned To 
   

August 9, 2016 CIP Adoption All 

 Compensation Study/Salary Churchill/Straus/Smoot 



 

-19- 
 

Schedule Update/Policies 

 Roseville Intertie Agreement  Churchill 

 Reserve Policy Updates Churchill/Straus/Sohal/Meurer 

 Water Supply Agreement Churchill 

 Project Agreement with RWA—
Regional Reliability Study 

Straus 

August 29, 2016  Budget and Rates Study Session Straus/Sohal 

September 13, 2016 Budget and Rates Workshop Straus/Sohal 

October 11, 2016   

November 8, 2016   

November 15, 2016 Operating and Capital Budgets Straus/Dietrich/Gordon 

 Water Rates, Charges & Fees Straus/Sohal 

 Capacity Fees Straus/Sohal 

 Water Shortage Charges Straus/Sohal 

December 13, 2016   

 
CORRESPONDENCE: 
None 
  
CLOSED SESSION: 
None   
 
FUTURE CHWD BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING DATES: 
Dates and locations of upcoming Regular Meetings of the Board of Directors were noted for the 
calendar.   
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no other business to come before the Board, the meeting was adjourned at 8:43 PM.  
 
APPROVED:  
 
 
                                                                                                                     
ROBERT A. CHURCHILL   ALLEN B. DAINS, President 
Secretary     Board of Directors 
Citrus Heights Water District                         Citrus Heights Water District 
 



CC-2

Mo-Yr Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16 Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Acutal Revenue

Budgeted 

Revenue Variance % Collected

Metered Service Charges 99,738 346,471 750,526 530,498 648,666 801,158 482,374 3,659,431 7,609,121 3,949,690 48.1%

Metered Water Deliveries 35,969 118,197 180,494 144,723 229,594 387,965 309,781 1,406,723 4,581,136 3,174,413 30.7%

Penalties 17,458 12,003 15,564 13,906 11,522 11,970 13,995 96,417 150,000 53,583 64.3%

Interest 0 0 26 0 0 26 0 -26 0.0%

New Acct, Fire & Backflow 

Fees 8,550 12,603 9,758 13,813 7,909 18,395 5,554 76,583 95,866 19,283 79.9%

WS Install & S&R 8,360 4,598 6,501 0 11,800 22,769 27,953 81,981 26,626 -55,355 307.9%

Grant Funds 540,000 0 0 60,000 0 715 600,715 0 -600,715 0.0%

Misc* 6,052 1,416 15,603 2,318 52,164 71,025 150,147 298,726 120,510 -178,216 247.9%

Connection Fees 15,037 6,683 6,683 0 0 0 0 28,403

Wheeling Water 2,217 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,217 4,429 2,212 50.1%

Reserves 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Total 193,380 1,041,971 985,129 705,258 1,021,682 1,313,282 990,518 6,251,221 12,587,688 6,336,467 49.7%

Outstanding Recievables

Total₁ Current 31-90 91-150 >150
Unapplied 

Current

873,017 677,453 276,980 7,519 8,492 (97,427)

General Ledger Balance Total

Outstanding A/R 906,799

Outstanding Liens 0

Outstanding Grants 61,211

Less Unapplied Payments (97,878)

Total₁ 870,132$       

 * Includes Assessments, Inclusions, Back Charges, Capacity Fees and other Miscellaneous Revenue Sources

CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT

2016 REVENUE ANALYSIS

Aged Trial Balance



Board Of Directors
Citrus Heights Water District

LID CID Charge Type Date Reason For Cancellation Amount

13967 0012396 DEFAULT 7/12/2016 One time courtsey 1.20           

20606 0032095 DEFAULT 7/13/2016 One time courtsey 0.68           

20554 0032095 DEFAULT 7/13/2016 One time courtsey 1.06           

05135 0004583 DEFAULT 7/19/2016 One time courtsey 4.42           

20610 0032095 DEFAULT 7/19/2016 One time courtsey 3.37           

20616 0032095 DEFAULT 7/19/2016 One time courtsey 3.33           

20582 0031302 DEFAULT 7/20/2016 One time courtsey 4.57           

07613 0030044 DEFAULT 7/25/2016 One time courtsey 3.94           

11355 0025878 DEFAULT 7/26/2016 One time courtsey 3.99           

01658 0033141 DEFAULT 7/28/2016 One time courtsey 4.03           

08729 0007813 DEFAULT 7/28/2016 One time courtsey 4.07           

20038 0031244 DEFAULT 7/6/2016 One time courtsey 3.46           

00893 0024549 NEW ACCOUNT FEE 7/6/2016 New Owner 20.00         

04740 0033894 DEFAULT 7/7/2016 One time courtsey 2.87           

03255 0003113 DEFAULT 7/7/2016 One time courtsey 4.25           

65.24$       

Pursuant to Policy No. 7315 the following charges have been cancelled.

 ASSESSOR/COLLECTOR'S ROLL ADJUSTMENTS FOR 

July 31, 2016



CC-4

TREASURER'S REPORT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT

Month of July 2016

Bank of the West                                                             

Balance Per Bank July 2016 $2,477,790

RECEIPTS: 1,024,073

DISBURSEMENTS:

Checks Issued / ACH Payments 401,193

Payroll 204,332

Returned Checks 462

605,987 418,086
Bank of the West                                                         

Balance per Bank July 31, 2016 2,895,876

Add :Outstanding Checks (1,167,865)

Less: Deposit in Transit 15,623
 

Balance Per Books July 31, 2016 $1,743,634

RECONCILEMENT:

Bank of the West $1,743,634

Local Agency Investment Fund 6,046,968

COP Reserve Account 533,354

Money Mkt Activity Account 530,453

TOTAL BALANCE $8,854,409

CASH & INVESTMENT SUMMARY:

        Bank of the West (General Account) $1,743,634

        Local Agency Investment Fund 6,046,968

        COP 2010 Reserve Account 533,354

        Money Mkt Activity Account 530,453

Total $8,854,409

                                              MATURITY INT DEPOSIT DATE OF LAST

INSTITUTION                   DATE RATE AMOUNT TRANSACTION

Local Agency Investment Fund         Daily 0.32% 4,928.02 1/14/2016

HILARY M. STRAUS, Treasurer

Signed: 08/03/2016

ROBERT CHURCHILL, Secretary

I certify that this report accurately reflects all pooled investments and is in compliance with applicable 
State of California Government Codes and is in conformity with Investment of  District Funds Policy 6300.  
As Treasurer of the Citrus Heights Water District, I hereby certify that sufficient investment liquidity and 
anticipated revenue are available to meet the next six months' estimated expenditures.



CC-5

 Beginning 

Balance 1/1/2016 

Year to Date 

Transfers In / 

Collections

Year to Date 

Transfers Out

Current Month 

Transfers In / 

Collections

Current Month 

Transfers Out

07/31/2016 

Ending Balance 

2016 Target 

Balance per 

Policy

Connection Fund -$                       -$                         N/A

Operating Fund 3,611,289$           3,611,289$         $1,918,930

Operating Reserve 1,912,263$           1,912,263$         N/A

Rate Stabilization Fund 634,000$               634,000$            $1,000,000

Depreciation Reserve 808,169$               808,169$            $2,029,295

Capital Improvement Reserve 845,857$               845,857$            $2,760,316

Restricted for Debt Service 536,963$               536,963$            N/A

Fleet Equipment Reserve 291,569$               291,569$            $316,968

Employment-Related Benefits Reserve 396,310$               396,310$            $864,229

9,036,420$           -$                     -$                       -$                         -$                         9,036,420$        

 TREASURER'S REPORT OF FUND BALANCES

July 31, 2016



CC-6

Page 1

Account Description
 2016 MTD 

Expense 

2016 YTD 

Expense
2016 Budget Variance $ Variance %

Water Demand Management

0000-51000-01 WATER DEMAND MANAGEMENT - POSTAGE - -                       14,000                14,000             0.0%

0000-51000-02 WATER DEMAND MANAGEMENT - PRINTING - 2,678               25,000                22,322             10.7%

0000-51000-03 WATER DEMAND MANAGEMENT - MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES 696                  9,281               11,500                2,219               80.7%

0000-51000-04 WATER DEMAND MANAGEMENT - CONTRACT SERVICES 18,211             117,559           221,000              103,441           53.2%

0000-51000-05 WATER DEMAND MANAGEMENT - OTHER 175                  3,949               8,000                  4,051               49.4%

0000-51000-06 WATER DEMAND MANAGEMENT - INCENTIVE PROGRAMS 1,550               8,675               3,000                  (5,675)              289.2%

20,632             142,142           282,500              140,358           50.3%

Operations

0000-52000-00 PURCHASED WATER 582,668           1,478,558        2,387,701           909,143           61.9%

0000-52050-00 COOPERATIVE TRANSMISSION PIPELINE MAINTENANCE - -                       5,000                  5,000               0.0%

0000-52300-01 POWER TO WELLS 7,733               67,432             244,904              177,472           27.5%

0000-52300-02 WELLS - REPAIR / MAINTENANCE - 3,332               22,000                18,668             15.1%

0000-52400-00 WATER QUALITY ANALYSIS 832                  11,658             41,000                29,342             28.4%

0000-54200-01 FIELD MISCELLANEOUS - DUMP FEES 77                    1,086               1,000                  (86)                   0.0%

0000-54200-03 FIELD MISCELLANEOUS - OTHER - 16                    1,000                  984                  1.6%

0000-54210-00 SMALL TOOLS - FIELD 1,332               16,592             23,400                6,808               70.9%

0000-54211-00 SUPPLIES - FIELD 1,822               13,704             19,000                5,296               72.1%

0000-54220-00 MATERIALS 33,135             165,816           6,000                  (159,816)          2763.6%

0002-54220-00 MATERIALS (Allocation to CIP) (22,009)            (93,343)            -                       0.0%

0000-54222-00 ROADBASE 11,350             22,276             20,000                (2,276)              111.4%

0000-54231-01 MAINTENANCE AGREEMENTS - EQUIPMENT 1,535               5,494               6,700                  1,206               82.0%

0000-54231-02 MAINTENANCE AGREEMENTS - SOFTWARE 5,235               123,920           1,343,322           1,219,402        9.2%

0000-54241-01 REPAIR - FLEET EQUIPMENT 3,675               28,048             40,000                11,952             70.1%

0000-54241-02 REPAIR - TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT 5                      10,004             12,000                1,996               83.4%

0000-54242-00 GAS AND OIL 4,418               19,776             51,000                31,224             38.8%

0000-54243-01 EQUIPMENT RENTAL - FIELD 114                  3,519               3,000                  (519)                 117.3%

0000-54243-02 EQUIPMENT RENTAL & MAINT - OFFICE & BUILDING EQUIP 620                  5,333               14,366                9,033               37.1%

EQUIPMENT (Allocation to CIP) (15,052)            (93,343)            

0000-54250-03 PERMIT FEE - AIR QUALITY / HAZ MAT - 2,374               5,700                  3,327               41.6%

0000-54250-04 PERMIT FEE - STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD (SWRCB) - 6,618               14,000                7,382               47.3%

0000-54250-05 PERMIT FEE - ENCROACHMENT PERMITS - 4,208               44,000                39,792             9.6%

617,490           1,803,080        4,305,093           2,315,328        41.9%

Professional & Contract Services

0000-56840-01 PROFESSIONAL / CONTRACT SERVICES - ENGINEERING - 275                  20,000                19,725             1.4%

0000-56840-02 PROFESSIONAL / CONTRACT SERVICES - TEMPORARY LABOR 2,974               57,148             50,000                (7,148)              114.3%

0000-56840-03 PROFESSIONAL / CONTRACT SERVICES - WELLS - -                       -                          -                       0.0%

0000-56840-04 PROFESSIONAL / CONTRACT SERVICES - OFFICE LABOR - 52,277             130,000              77,723             0.0%

0000-56840-05 PROFESSIONAL  /CONTRACT SERVICES - METER READING 5,897               61,203             108,960              47,757             56.2%

0000-56840-06 PROFESSIONAL / CONTRACT SERVICES - BILL PRINT/MAIL 2,235               19,288             27,600                8,312               69.9%

0000-56840-08 PROFESSIONAL / CONTRACT SERVICES - FINANCIAL 8,665               10,145             5,000                  (5,145)              0.0%

0000-56840-09 PROFESSIONAL / CONTRACT SERVICES - OTHER 14,478             79,582             133,460              53,878             59.6%

0000-54223-01 CONTRACT SERVICES - CONCRETE - -                       8,000                  8,000               0.0%

0000-54223-02 CONTRACT SERVICES - MISC FIELD / O&M 13,229             27,278             30,000                2,722               90.9%

0000-54223-03 CONTRACT SERVICES - OFFICE REPAIRS / MAINT - 1,261               2,000                  739                  63.1%

0000-54223-04 CONTRACT SERVICES - PAVING - 1,791               9,000                  7,209               19.9%

47,477             310,249           524,020              213,771           59.2%

Administration & General Services

0000-56120-00 JANITORIAL 837                  5,439               11,100                5,661               49.0%

0000-56150-00 BANK FEES 6,666               42,748             71,000                28,252             60.2%

0000-56200-00 OFFICE EXPENSE 210                  8,141               15,000                6,859               54.3%

0000-56210-00 SMALL OFFICE EQUIPMENT - 5,086               2,000                  (3,086)              254.3%

0000-56220-00 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 36,113             94,393             112,210              17,817             84.1%

0000-56230-00 POSTAGE 10,300             69,704             103,000              33,296             67.7%

0000-56240-00 PRINTING 46                    703                  7,700                  6,997               9.1%

0000-56250-01 TELEPHONE - WIRELESS 1,077               8,219               16,800                8,581               48.9%

0000-56250-02 TELEPHONE - LOCAL / LONG DISTANCE 1,777               14,783             12,500                (2,283)              118.3%

0000-56250-04 TELEPHONE - ANSWERING SERVICE 256                  1,119               2,400                  1,281               46.6%

0000-56251-00 UTILITIES 991                  11,971             19,700                7,729               60.8%

CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT

2016 OPERATING EXPENDITURE VS BUDGET

July 31, 2016



CC-6

Page 2

Account Description
 2016 MTD 

Expense 

2016 YTD 

Expense
2016 Budget Variance $ Variance %

CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT

2016 OPERATING EXPENDITURE VS BUDGET

July 31, 2016

0000-56810-00 LEGAL & AUDIT 14,926             47,981             78,900                30,919             60.8%

0000-56830-00 CONTINUED EDUCATION 5,342               24,519             45,780                21,261             53.6%

0000-56846-00 PUBLICATION NOTICES 128                  460                  1,500                  1,040               30.7%

0000-56890-01 OFFICE MISC - DISTRICT EVENTS 170                  2,563               5,110                  2,547               50.2%

0000-56890-02 OFFICE MISC - MEETING ACCOMODATIONS 84                    1,190               2,000                  810                  59.5%

0000-56890-03 OFFICE MISC - OTHER - 1,248               2,200                  952                  56.7%

0000-56890-04 OFFICE MISC - MILESTONE EVENTS - -                       5,100                  5,100               0.0%

0000-57200-00 BAD DEBT EXPENSE 1,031               1,275               5,000                  3,725               25.5%

0000-56950-00 COMPUTER SOFTWARE - 400                  3,700                  3,300               10.8%

79,953             341,944           522,700              180,756           65.4%

Administration Other

0000-56845-00 ELECTION EXPENSE - -                       29,000                29,000             0.0%

0000-54110-00 DIRECTORS MEETING COMPENSATION 1,160               7,975               20,300                12,325             39.3%

0000-54110-01 RETIREE HEALTH CARE BENEFIT 3,201               20,957             43,547                22,590             48.1%

4,361               28,932             92,847                63,915             31.2%

Salary & Benefits

0000-54120-01 SALARY - GENERAL MANAGER 14,021             105,120           162,016              56,896             64.9%

0000-54120-02 SALARY - MANAGER (3 authorized positions) 11,427             150,248           219,132              68,884             68.6%

0000-54120-03 SALARY - OFFICE (6 authorized positions) 30,273             138,127           374,100              235,973           36.9%

0000-54120-04 SALARY -WATER DEMAND MANAGEMENT (2 authorized positions) 11,381             86,350             156,088              69,738             55.3%

0000-54130-02 SALARY - FIELD / O&M (15 authorized positions) 88,979             618,059           1,118,893           500,834           55.2%

0000-54130-03 STANDBY DUTY 1,380               10,260             17,940                7,680               57.2%

0001-54140-01 SALARY - PROJECT MNGMT & ENGENEERING (20,096)            102,241           315,145              -                       0.0%

0000-56400-01 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT - VISION INSURANCE 753                  7,206               5,100                  (2,106)              141.3%

0000-56400-02 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT - DENTAL INSURANCE 2,990               33,217             43,200                9,983               76.9%

0000-56400-03 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT - HEALTH  INSURANCE 30,147             218,481           375,272              156,791           58.2%

0000-56400-04 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT - PERS RETIREMENT 54,744             348,696           422,544              73,848             82.5%

0000-56400-05 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT - SOCIAL SECURITY 12,202             84,737             153,444              68,707             55.2%

0000-56400-06 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT - MEDICARE 2,854               19,818             35,886                16,068             55.2%

0000-56400-07 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT - UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE 103                  6,139               7,875                  1,736               78.0%

0000-56400-08 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT - HEALTH INSURANCE REIMBURSEMENT 1,709               18,273             26,000                7,727               70.3%

0002-54120-00 EMPLOYEE SALARY & BENEFITS - (Allocation to CIP) (24,067)            (275,249)          (339,867)             (64,618)            81.0%

218,799           1,671,723        3,092,768           1,208,142        54.1%

Insurance

0000-56310-01 INSURANCE - LIABILITY & COMPREHENSIVE (16,353)            61,648             75,300                13,652             81.9%

0000-56310-02 INSURANCE - DISABILITY & LIFE 1,972               19,345             28,300                8,955               68.4%

0000-56310-03 INSURANCE - WORKER'S COMPENSATION 28,862             28,862             54,319                25,457             53.1%

14,481             109,854           157,919              48,065             69.6%

Reserves & Debt Services

0000-28200-00 RATE STABLIZATION RESERVE - -                       100,000              100,000           0.0%

0000-28300-00 DEPRECIATION RESERVE - -                       1,001,744           1,001,744        0.0%

0000-28400-00 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT RESERVE - -                       1,000,000           1,000,000        0.0%

0000-28800-00 EMPLOYMENT-RELATED BENEFITS RESERVE - -                       -                          -                       0.0%

0000-59000-01 DEBT SERVICE - COP SERIES 2010 - 50,503             571,200              520,697           8.8%

0000-59010-01 DEBT SERVICE - COP SERIES 2012 46,435             168,871           169,063              192                  99.9%

46,435             219,373.32      2,842,007.00      2,622,633.68   7.7%

1,049,628$      4,627,296$      11,819,854$       6,792,969$      39.15%



CC-7

Citrus Heights Water District

Capital Projects Summary

Fiscal Period End as of July 2016

Project No. Description
Total Project Budget

 Adopted Budget 

2016

Expenditures to 

12/2015

Total Remaining 

Commitments

Current  Upaid 

Committed

Month to 

Date
Year to Date Project to date 2017

2015-31 Baird Way 12" Water Main Replacement Project 504,283                  5,698                   498,586           9,677            18,218            23,916            476,781            

2015-32 Graham Circle 6" and Circuit Drive 8" Water Main Replacement Project -                       -                    -                      -                -                  -                   

2015-33 Highland Avenue 8" Main Replacement and Rosa Vista Avenue 8" Main Installation Project 396,672                  24,619                -                       396,672           -                      -                -                  -                   372,053            

2015-34 Michigan Drive 8" / 6" Water Main Replacement Project -                       -                    -                      -                -                  -                   

2015-35 Sunrise Blvd Streetscape Phase III 162,183               (162,183)          -                      -                4,199              166,381          

2015-36 Sylvan Road Street Improvements 4,161                   (4,161)               -                      -                89                   4,250               

2016-31 Wind Way 8-Inch and Longwood Way 6-Inch Water Main Replacements 324,446                  -                       324,446           -                -                  -                   

2016-34 Auburn Blvd - Rusch Park to Placer County Line 158,252                  8,968                  -                       158,252           -                -                  -                   323,446            

Distribution Mains - Replacement 1,383,653 33,587                172,041              728,914           -                     9,677           22,506           194,547          1,172,280        

2016-14 Fire Hydrants - Replacements / Upgrades / Infill / New 147,092                  147,092              -                       147,092           -                      492               73,631            73,631            -                     

Fire Hydrants - Replacements/Upgrades/New 147,092                  147,092             -                       147,092           -                     492               73,631           73,631            -                     

2015-02 Annual Corporation Yard Improvements/Replacements 109,500                  109,500              -                       109,500           -                      6,650            18,691            18,691            -                     

2016-03 Annual Fleet and Field Operations Equipment Improvements/Replacements 32,200                     32,200                -                       32,200              -                      48,600         48,600            48,600            75,000              

2015-04 Annual Technology Hardware and Software Improvements/Replacements 750,000                  300,000              3,356                   746,644           -                      18,825         25,692            29,049            450,000            

2016-04 Annual Technology Hardware and Software Improvements/Replacements 38,934                     38,934                -                       38,934              -                      4,319            46,738            46,738            -                     

2016-10 Water Main Pipeline Replacements 28,465                     28,465                -                       28,465              -                      -                18,811            18,811            -                     

2016-11 Water Valve Replacements 91,281                     91,281                -                       91,281              -                      -                78,288            78,288            -                     

2016-12 Water Service Replacements 757,685                  757,685              -                       757,685           -                      -                345,385         345,385          -                     

2015-38 Mariposa Avenue 12" Water Main Replacement Project 27,111                     27,111                -                       27,111              -                      -                -                  -                   -                     

2015-39 Cal Am Inter Connection 4,064                   (4,064)               -                      -                2,775              6,839               -                     

2016-40 Other City Partnership Opportunities 99,057                     99,057                -                       99,057              -                      -                -                  -                   149,284            

2016-41 Other Miscellaneous Infrastructure Projects 99,057                     99,057                -                       99,057              -                      -                -                  -                   -                     

Miscellaneous Projects 2,033,290               1,583,290          7,420                   2,025,870        -                     78,394         584,980         592,401          674,284            

2012-13 Administration Building Expansion / Renovation Project 1,205,171           -                    -                      -                4,785              1,209,957       -                     

2016-25 Other Miscellaneous Infrastructure Projects - Admin Building Extension 100,000                  100,000              7,724            79,823            79,823            

Miscellaneous Projects -  Facilities -                           -                      1,205,171           -                    -                     7,724           84,608           1,289,779      -                     

2013-30 San Juan High School 24" North Property Line Transmission Main Installation 483,671                  225,591              312,473               171,198           -                      1,165            102,504         414,977          

2014-36

San Juan Park 12" Water Main Installation - 5555 Mariposa Avenue to UC Davis Medical 

Center 348,800                  198,842              177,630               171,170           -                      -                67,773            245,402          -                     

2015-30 Poplar Avenue 14" Transmission Main Installation 112,335                  99,655                4,756                   107,579           -                      1,165            13,612            18,368            -                     

Transmission Mains - New 944,806                  524,088             494,858              449,948           -                     2,329           183,890         678,748          -                     

2014-33 Mariposa Avenue 18" & 8" Sycamore Drive to Pratt Avenue 414,356               -                    -                      -                15,769            430,125          -                     

2016-30 Mariposa Avenue 12-inch Mains 533,706                  533,706              10,214                 523,493           -                      360,637       414,049         424,263          

2016-33 Limerick Way 8-Inch Main Replacements 239,415                  239,415              -                       -                    -                      13,353         71,491            71,491            

Transmission Mains - New and Distribution Mains - Replacement 773,121                  773,121             424,570              523,493           -                     373,989       501,309         925,879          -                     

2016-13 Water Meter Replacements 53,158                     53,158                -                       53,158              -                      -                28,505            28,505            -                     

Water Meters 53,158                    53,158                -                       53,158             -                     -                28,505           28,505            -                     

2011-01 Fair Way 12" x 8" Interconnection w/ RV 28,105                     28,105                -                       28,105              -                      -                -                  -                   -                     

2012-09 Blossom Hill Drive 6" x 10" Interconnection w/ RV 25,480                     25,480                -                       25,480              -                      -                -                  -                   -                     

2012-10 Crestmont Avenue 6" Interconnection w/ RV 19,980                     19,980                -                       19,980              -                      -                -                  -                   -                     

2013-21 Skycrest Skycrest Construction 2,081,569               -                      2,145,695           -                      -                245,597         2,391,292       

2016-20 Groundwater Well Improvements 48,900                     48,900                -                       48,900              -                      -                102,957         102,957          -                     

2015-37 C-Bar-C Pressure Control Station 200,000                  200,000              -                       200,000           -                      -                -                  -                   

Water Meters - Emergency Intertie Water Meters 2,404,034               322,465             2,145,695           322,465           -                     -                348,553         2,494,248      -                     

Grand Total 7,739,154               3,436,801          4,449,756           4,250,939        -                     472,605       1,827,982      6,277,738      1,846,564        

Budget

Remaining 

Commitments Amounts Paid

Remaining 

Projections



CC:8

61840 Rotary Club of Citrus Heights Continued Education $420.00

61841 Blackbird Associates Contract Services-Engineering $9,738.13

61842 Kaler/Dobler Construction Inc Contract Services-Engineering $60,227.61

61843 NV5 / Nolte Associates, Inc. Contract Services-Engineering $8,162.70

61844 SMUD Utilities $9,436.72

61845 US Bank I.M.P.A.C. Government Services Continued Education $8,122.13

61846 Terri Cahill Customer Refund $71.25

61847 Gregory J Moreno Customer Refund $136.77

61848 Magill Family 1998 Revocable Trust Customer Refund $160.34

61849 Kristen N Cook-Cabana Customer Refund $98.80

61850 Clifford W Meyer Customer Refund $60.33

61851 Jan E Gilmore Customer Refund $10.48

61852 Steven/Sue Richards Customer Refund $126.34

61853 3 Point Real Estate & Construction Customer Refund $59.16

61854 AFLAC Employee Paid Insuance $362.66

61855 Bart/Riebes Auto Parts Repair-Trucks $7.55

61856 Corelogic Information Solutions Inc Dues & Subscriptions $185.83

61857 Coverall North America Inc Janitorial $450.00

61858 Cybex Equipment Rental-Office $139.45

61859 J4 Systems Contract Services-Other $2,763.96

61860 KASL Consulting Engineers Contract Services-Engineering $2,051.00

61861 KBA DOCUSYS Maintenance Agreement-Equipment $146.87

61862 KBA Docusys Inc Equipment Rental-Office $343.43

61863 Moonlight BPO Contract Services-Bill Print $2,855.57

61864 Sonitrol Equipment Rental-Office $162.27

61865 Borey Swing Continued Education $265.94

61866 John/Elaine L Garayalde Customer Refund $105.15

61867 Julie Ann Lowery, Successor Trustee Customer Refund $109.99

61868 June L Davidson Trust Customer Refund $75.65

61869 Nathan/Kathryn Lauppe Customer Refund $152.29

61870 Antoinette S Dzaklui Customer Refund $94.39

61871 Steven/Sarah Renaud Customer Refund $21.36

61872 Oleksandr Huzovatyy Customer Refund $115.90

61873 Alexander's Contract Services Contract Services-Meter Read $1,867.54

61874 AnswerNet Telephone-Answering Service $255.58

61875 Bryce Consulting, Inc Legal & Audit $1,640.00

61876 BSK Associates Water Analysis $540.00

61877 California Landscape Associates Inc Janitorial $200.00

61878 City of Citrus Heights Permit Fees $175.00

61879 Robin Cope Health Insurance $402.00

61880 Gaynor Telesystems Incorporated Fixed Assets $362.72

61881 Ferguson Enterprises Inc #1423 Material $976.82

61882 HD Supply Waterworks LTD Material $1,497.97

61883 Indoor Environmental Services Maintenance Agreement-Equipment $580.83

61884 Moonlight BPO Contract Services-Bill Print $1,719.33

61885 One Print Source & Graphics Printing $46.44

61886 Pace Supply Corp Material $5,710.46

61887 Paladin Private Security Contract Services-Other $4,009.50

61888 Protection One Alarm Monitoring Equipment Rental-Office $140.00

61889 Ramos Environmental Services Field Miscellaneous $76.50

61890 Republic Services #922 Utilities $201.17

61891 RW Trucking Contract Services-Miscellaneous $4,417.50

61892 SureWest Directories Telephone-Local/Long Distance $49.00

61893 A. Teichert & Son, Inc. Road Base $409.50

JULY 2016 WARRANTS



CC:8

61894 Titan Workforce LLC Contract Services-Temporary Labor $1,715.18

61895 Union Bank Trust Department-Fees Small Office Equipment $270.15

61896 Gary E/Lanaya D Dix Customer Refund $10.50

61897 Randall A Pape Customer Refund $244.42

61898 James L/Kami L Greenly Customer Refund $7.65

61899 Keller Wiliams Realty Customer Refund $184.94

61900 Andrew W Johnson Customer Refund $22.82

61901 Gerald D/Heather C Radford Customer Refund $81.15

61902 Dana Silchuck Customer Refund $215.66

61903 AIA Services, LLC/NDS Water Conservation-Material/ Supplies $3,560.48

61904 Alexander's Contract Services Contract Services-Meter Read $2,638.27

61905 Applied Best Practices Contract Services-Financial $1,589.00

61906 Axcient Inc Maintenance Agreement-Software $444.30

61907 Consolidated Telephone-Local/Long Distance $1,727.70

61908 GM Construction & Developers Contract Services-Miscellaneous $7,756.00

61909 J4 Systems Contract Services-Other $1,420.00

61910 Kaiser Foundation Health Plan, Inc Health Insurance $14,287.76

61911 Kurey & Associates Contract Services-Engineering $3,600.00

61912 Moonlight BPO Contract Services-Bill Print $2,627.46

61913 Office Depot Office Expense $71.05

61914 The Sacramento Gazette Publication Notices $128.35

61915 VOID VOID $0.00

61916 SHI International Corp Maintenance Agreement-Software $4,319.33

61917 SMUD Utilities $2,167.13

61918 Sophos Solutions Contract Services-Other $2,240.00

61919 Titan Workforce LLC Contract Services-Temporary Labor $356.40

61920 J Crowley Group Inc Water Conservation-Other $1,800.00

61921 Rick C Morales Toilet Rebate Program $150.00

61922 James M Cuccia Toilet Rebate Program $150.00

61923 Michelle  Hampton Toilet Rebate Program $75.00

61924 Chris Winchell or Jana Holm Toilet Rebate Program $75.00

61925 Mark S/Lucinda R Driscoll Customer Refund $86.76

61926 Mary E Thomas   Trust Customer Refund $20.66

61927 Danielle Odell Customer Refund $135.07

61928 Luigi Caprio Realty Inc Customer Refund $13.32

61929 Kelly Harder Customer Refund $55.15

61930 ABA DABA Rentals & Sales Supplies-Field $846.76

61931 AIA Services, LLC/NDS Water Conservation-Material/ Supplies $695.64

61932 Airgas NCN Supplies-Field $55.04

61933 Alexander's Contract Services Contract Services-Meter Read $2,456.11

61934 Applied Best Practices Contract Services-Financial $625.00

61935 AREA Restroom Solutions Equipment Rental- Field $114.34

61936 Bart/Riebes Auto Parts Repair-Trucks $130.51

61937 Bennett Engineering Services, Inc Contract Services-Engineering $1,164.50

61938 Blueline Rental Equipment Rental- Field $1,078.66

61939 BSK Associates Water Analysis $690.00

61940 California Cut & Core Inc Contract Services-Paving/Concrete $1,552.52

61941 California Surveying & Drafting Supply Small Tools $5.00

61942 Caltronics Business System Small Office Equipment $59.40

61943 CirclePoint Contract Services-Water Conservation $4,060.07

61944 Dawson Oil Company Gas & Oil $1,285.36

61945 Future Ford Repair-Trucks $723.07

61946 Ferguson Enterprises Inc #1423 Material $5,441.92

61947 Hesse, Daniel Small Tools $189.00

61948 J4 Systems Contract Services-Other $1,090.92

61949 KASL Consulting Engineers Contract Services-Engineering $1,533.00

61950 KBA DOCUSYS Maintenance Agreement-Equipment $807.04

61951 Kei Window Cleaning #12 Janitorial $92.00



CC:8

61952 Mason Smith Success Strategies Contract Services-Financial $6,250.00

61953 Anthony Matracia Liabilty & Comp Insurance $340.93

61954 Maze & Associates Legal & Audit $1,500.00

61955 Moonlight BPO Contract Services-Bill Print $4,169.04

61956 Pace Supply Corp Material $614.97

61957 Red Wing Shoe Store Small Tools $230.00

61958 Les Schwab Tires Repair-Trucks $416.48

61959 SHI International Corp Maintenance Agreement-Software $1,955.68

61960 Sonsray Machinery, LLC Fixed Assets $1,686.79

61961 State Water Resources Control Board Dues & Subscriptions $80.00

61962 A. Teichert & Son, Inc. Road Base $7,129.80

61963 The Lincoln National Life Insurance Company Disability & Life Insurance $5,806.42

61964 Titan Workforce LLC Contract Services-Temporary Labor $3,651.66

61965 Twin Home Services Janitorial $95.00

61966 Underground Service Alert Dues & Subscriptions $2,372.20

61967 Verizon Wireless Telephone-Wireless $1,077.00

61968 Voyager Fleet Systems Inc Gas & Oil $1,985.49

61969 Wallace Kuhl & Associates Inc Contract Services-Miscellaneous $785.00

61970 Water Research Foundation Dues & Subscriptions $1,845.00

TOTAL $253,451.86

ACH  2016 INT PYMNT COP Debt Service $46,434.64

ACH  FP MAILING SOLUTIONS Postage $1,000.00

ACH  JUNE 2016 BANK FEE Bank Fee $2,365.23

ACH  JUNE 2016 FD Bank Fee $291.57

ACH  JUNE 2016 PH Bank Fee $251.34

ACH  JUNE 2016 WEB Bank Fee $3,600.67

ACH  PAYCHEX Contract Services-Other $520.35

ACH  PERS 6/30/16 PAYDAY PERS $14,009.21

ACH  PERS 7/14/16 PAYDAY PERS $14,348.77

ACH  PERS 7/28/16 PAYDAY PERS $14,361.16

ACH  VALIC 7/28/16 PAYDAY Deferred Compensation $3,220.00

ACH  VK7077 7/28/16 PAYDAY Deferred Compensation $45.00

ACH  WHA AUG 2016 Health Insurance $16,907.59

ACH PERS EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION PERS $26,741.84

ACH VALIC 7/14/16 PAYDAY Deferred Compensation $3,520.00

ACH VK7077 7/14/16 PAYDAY Deferred Compensation $45.00

ACH VANCO Contract Services-Other $79.10

TOTAL $147,741.47

GRAND TOTAL $401,193.33

August Checks Approved at August Board Meeting

61984 US Bank I.M.P.A.C. Government Services See Agenda Item CC:9 $8,399.63

61983 SMUD Utilities $8,523.33

61979 RW Trucking Contract Services-Miscellaneous $8,811.26

61973 Area West Engineers Inc Contract Services-Engineering $9,677.25

61971 ACWA/JPIA Workers Compensation Insurance $12,934.00

61972 Albietz Law Firm Legal & Audit $13,425.61

61976 Corporate Design Group Inc Contract Services-Other $14,034.00

61978 Proud AV Inc Contract Services-Other $15,779.28

61975 Corix Water Products, Inc Material $18,564.21

61982 Sacramento Groundwater Authority Dues & Subscriptions $30,411.00

61977 Elk Grove Auto Group Inc Fixed Assets $48,600.00

61980 Regional Water Authority Dues & Subscriptions $63,794.00



CC:8

61974 Civil Engineering Construction, Inc. Contract Services-Miscellaneous $332,243.50

61981 San Juan Water District Purchased Water $582,668.12

TOTAL $1,167,865.19



CC:8



US BANK - CAL-Card Distributions

July 2016
i/users/ap/CalCard/(current year) -Distribution for monthly payment.xls

TOTAL

BILL 51000-04 52400 54210 54211 54231-02 54241-01 54241-02 54242 56200 56230 56830 56840-08 56890-01 56890-02

#REF!

Water 

Conser/  

Cont Serv

Wtr Analys Tools Supplies
Main Agree       

Software

Repair      

Truck

Repair - 

Equip/Hardw

are

Gas & Oil Office Exp Postage C.E.
C/S 

Financial

Office Misc, 

District 

Event

Mtg Accom

Churchill -$                  

Cutler 119.13$             119.13     

Dains -$                  

Dietrich 15.99$               15.99      

Evans 2,935.66$          73.53      465.58    1,287.66  674.43    4.51        69.77      138.86   169.73   51.59       

Gordon 48.38$               48.38      

Hensley 185.55$             57.61     50.94       77.00         

Riehle -$                  

Sheehan -$                  

Shockley 2,003.47$          330.48     1,440.00    200.61   32.38       

Smoot 2,813.47$          116.10     2,697.37    

Straus 277.98$             250.00          27.98      

8,399.63$          73.53      57.61     465.58    1,457.73  250.00          718.40    4.51        118.15    138.86   446.58     4,214.37    200.61   169.73   83.97       

2016

V#:

Date: 7/ 31/ 16  A
 









































































AGENDA ITEM:  CC-12 
 

CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT 

 
DISTRICT STAFF REPORT TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

AUGUST 9, 2016 REGULAR MEETING 
 

 

 

SUBJECT           : CITRUS HEIGHTS CITY HALL EASEMENT ACCEPTANCE 
STATUS          : Action Item – Consent Calendar 
REPORT DATE      : August 2, 2016 
PREPARED BY      : Paul A. Dietrich, Project Manager 
 

 

OBJECTIVE: 
Consider adoption of Resolution 20-2016 accepting an easement from CP City Hall, LLC. 
 
BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS: 
 
Site improvements to the new Citrus Heights City Hall at 6360 Fountain Square Drive required the 
installation of new water distribution mains, water services and fire protection facilities to provide water 
service to the site.  An easement for the water facilities was granted by CP City Hall, LLC at no cost to the 
District. 
 
See attached Grant of Easement including Exhibit “A”, Legal Description and Exhibit “B”, Plat Map. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Adopt Resolution 20-2016 accepting an easement from CP City Hall, LLC. 
 
 
ACTION: 
 
Moved by Director _________________, Seconded by Director _________________, Carried __________  
 
 

 

 
 

















  

CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT 
RESOLUTION NO. 20-2016 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT 
ACCEPTING AN EASEMENT FROM 

CP CITY HALL, LLC 
FOR WATER DISTRIBUTION FACILITIES WITHIN 

6360 FOUNTAIN SQUARE DR, CITRUS HEIGHTS CITY HALL 
 
Whereas CP CITY HALL, LLC, a California Limited Liability Company, for a valuable 
consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, does hereby grant to CITRUS HEIGHTS 
WATER DISTRICT, a political subdivision of the State of California formed pursuant to Division 
11 of the Water Code, a right-of-way and non-exclusive easement to construct, reconstruct, 
operate, maintain and/or repair water pipelines together with any and all appurtenances 
appertaining thereto; together with the perpetual right of ingress thereto and egress there from for 
the purpose of exercising and performing all of the rights and privileges granted herein;  said 
pipelines and appurtenances to be of such size(s) and character as the grantee may determine, on, 
over, across and under all that certain real property, situate in the City of Citrus Heights, County 
of Sacramento, State of California particularly described as follows: 
 
A portion of that certain Tract of land described in that certain Certificate of Compliance recorded 
in Book 20070323, Page 1434, Sacramento County Official Records, described as follows: 
 
Parcel One 
 
A strip of land the uniform width of fifteen (15) feet, lying five (5) feet to the left and ten (10) feet 
to the right of the following described line: 
 
BEGINNING at a point hereinafter referred to as Point A, on the easterly line of that certain 
Easement for Public Roadway and Public Utilities, as said easement is described in that certain 
document recorded in Book 20070323, Page 1435, Sacramento County Official Records, from 
which the southwest corner of the above referenced Tract bears the following two (2) courses: (1) 
along said easterly line, South 10°54’31” West 178.67 feet to the southerly line of said Tract and 
(2) along said southerly line South 89°14’13” West 40.00 feet; thence from the point of beginning, 
leaving said easterly line, North 89°33’05” East 5.50 feet to a point hereinafter referred to as Point 
B; thence continuing North 89°33’05” East 56.62 feet; thence South 00°26’55” East 122.60 feet; 
thence North 89°14’28” East 61.09 feet to a point hereinafter referred to as Point C; thence 
continuing North 89°14’28” East 228.86 feet; thence North 00°45’32” West 6.00 feet to a point 
hereinafter referred to as Point D; thence continuing North 00°45’32” West 8.99 feet to a point 
hereinafter referred to as Point E; thence continuing North 00°45’32” West 80.13 feet to a point 
hereinafter referred to as Point F; thence continuing North 00°45’32” West 242.41 feet to a point 
hereinafter referred to as Point G; thence continuing North 00°45’32” West 70.10 feet to a point 
hereinafter referred to as Point H; thence South 89°14’28” West 206.89 feet; thence South 
66°44’28” West 39.65 feet; thence North 70°26’16” West 38.76 feet to a point on said easterly 
line hereinafter referred to as Point I and the terminus of the herein described easement. 
 
The sidelines of said strip shall be lengthened or shortened to terminate at said easterly line. 



  

 
Parcel Two 
 
A strip of land the uniform width of ten (10) feet, the centerline of which is described as follows: 
 
BEGINNING at said Point B; thence South 00°45’47” East 29.16 feet to the terminus of the herein 
described easement. 
 
Parcel Three 
 
A strip of land the uniform width of ten (10) feet, the centerline of which is described as follows: 
 
BEGINNING at said Point C; thence North 00°45’32” West 12.67 feet to the terminus of the herein 
described easement. 
 
Parcel Four 
 
A strip of land the uniform width of ten (10) feet, the centerline of which is described as follows: 
 
BEGINNING at said Point D; thence North 89°14’28” East 29.98 feet to the terminus of the herein 
described easement. 
 
Parcel Five 
 
A strip of land the uniform width of ten (10) feet, the centerline of which is described as follows: 
 
BEGINNING at said Point E; thence South 89°14’28” West 14.25 feet to the terminus of the herein 
described easement. 
 
Parcel Six 
 
A strip of land the uniform width of twenty-five (25) feet, the centerline of which is described as 
follows: 
 
BEGINNING at said Point F; thence South 89°20’02” West 32.02 feet to the terminus of the herein 
described easement. 
  



  

Parcel Seven 
 
A strip of land the uniform width of ten (10) feet, the centerline of which is described as follows: 
 
BEGINNING at said Point G; thence South 89°14’28” West 14.25 feet to the terminus of the 
herein described easement. 
 
Parcel Eight 
 
A strip of land the uniform width of fifteen (15) feet, lying five (5) feet to the left and ten (10) feet 
to the right of the following described line: 
 
BEGINNING at said Point H; thence North 00°45’32” West 35.00 feet to the terminus of the 
herein described easement. 
 
Parcel Nine 
 
A strip of land the uniform width of 3.5 feet, the westerly line of which is described as follows: 
 
BEGINNING at said Point I; thence along the above referenced easterly line along the arc of a 
curve to the right, concave to the east, having a radius of 1122 feet, and being subtended by a chord 
bearing North 20°45’19” East 45.97 feet to the terminus of the herein described easement. 
 
Parcel Ten 
 
A strip of land the uniform width of ten (10) feet, the centerline of which is described as follows: 
 
BEGINNING at a point on the above referenced easterly line from which said Point A bears South 
10°54’31” West 114.40 feet; thence from the point of beginning, leaving said easterly line, South 
79°05’29” East 39.39 feet to the terminus of the herein described easement. 
 
The sidelines of said strip shall be lengthened or shortened to terminate at said easterly line. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT accepts 
said Grant of Easement and conveyance and that a certified copy of this Resolution be provided to 
the County of Sacramento to be attached to and recorded with said Grant of Easement in the Office 
of the County Recorder of Sacramento County. 
  



  

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER 
DISTRICT this 9th day of August 2016 by the following vote, to wit: 
 
AYES:  Directors: Dains, Sheehan, Riehle 
NOES:  Directors:  
ABSTAIN: Directors:  
ABSENT: Directors:  
 
SEAL 
   
 ALLEN B. DAINS, President 
 Board of Directors 
 Citrus Heights Water District 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
ROBERT A. CHURCHILL, Secretary 
Citrus Heights Water District 
 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATION: 
 
I, ROBERT A. CHURCHILL, hereby certify and acknowledge that Resolution 20-2016 was 
adopted by the Board of Directors of Citrus Heights Water District at a duly called and noticed 
regular meeting of said Board on the 9th day of August 2016. 
 
 
_______________________________ 
ROBERT A. CHURCHILL, Secretary 
Citrus Heights Water District 



AGENDA ITEM:  CC-13 
 

CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT 

 

DISTRICT STAFF REPORT TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
AUGUST 9, 2016 REGULAR MEETING 

  

 

 

SUBJECT           : 2017 BUDGET WORKSHOP SPECIAL MEETING 
STATUS          : Action Item 
REPORT DATE      : August 3, 2016 
PREPARED BY      : Robert A. Churchill, General Manager 
 

 

OBJECTIVE: 
Call for a Special Meeting of the Board of Directors at 6:30 PM on Monday, August 29, 2016 for the 
purpose of conducting a 2017 Budget Workshop Meeting.  
 

BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS: 
A work session with the Board of Directors highlighting the “building blocks” of the operations and capital 
budgets/key assumptions/strategic plan needs is proposed for August 29th, followed by an initial budget 
presentation at the September Regular Board of Directors Meeting in September.  
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Call for a Special Meeting of the Board of Directors at 6:30 PM on Monday, August 29, 2016 for the 
purpose of conducting a 2017 Budget Workshop Meeting.  
 

ACTION: 
 
Moved by Director _________________, Seconded by Director _________________, Carried __________  
 

 

 

 
 



AGENDA ITEM:  O-1 
 

CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT 

 

DISTRICT STAFF REPORT TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
AUGUST 9, 2016 REGULAR MEETING 

 

 

 

SUBJECT           : APPROVAL OF 2017 STRATEGIC PLAN 
STATUS          : Discussion and Action Item 
REPORT DATE      : August 2, 2016 
PREPARED BY      : Robert A. Churchill, General Manager 
    Hilary M. Straus, Assistant General Manager 
    Lisa A. Smoot, Management Services Supervisor/Chief Board Clerk 
     

 

OBJECTIVE: 
Discussion and possible action concerning the Citrus Heights Water District 2017 Strategic Plan. 
 

BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS: 
Beginning with the 2017 budget process, CHWD has initiated an annual Strategic Planning process. The 
goal of Strategic Planning has been to bring the Board of Directors and key District staff together to identify 
and prioritize the District’s key policy, program and project issues, and to identify what items, given limited 
resources (i.e., funding, time and staffing resources) the District should be working on over and above daily 
operations in the coming year. One key follow-up item of this planning process is to prepare a budget for the 
coming year that reflects the results of the Strategic Plan.  
 
The Strategic Planning process includes three major components: 1) Education; 2) Team Building; 3) Work 
Program Development.  
 
The education component consisted of a tour of the Sidney Peterson Water Treatment Plant at San Juan 
Water District, an extensive bus tour of the Citrus Heights Water District service area and a key issues 
briefing by CHWD staff on May 31, 2016. Also on June 14, 2016, San Juan Water District Assistant 
General Manager Keith Durkin provided a key issues briefing to the CHWD Board of Directors on the San 
Juan Wholesale operation.  
 
The Team Building and Work Program Development components took place on June 26, 2016, in a session 
attended by the Board of Directors and key District staff, facilitated by Laura Mason-Smith.  
 
Accompanying this staff report are the Strategic Planning notes, prepared by facilitator Laura Mason-Smith. 
District leadership staff has made initial assignments as to who will serve as Project/Issue Lead and who will 
serve on the Project or Issue/Team to accomplish each objective.  
 
District leadership staff will be reviewing progress on the Strategic Plan several times each month, and 
update the Board of Directors quarterly or more often as requested.  
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Review the Strategic Plan notes accompanying this staff report, approve the 2017 Strategic Plan, and direct 
that Strategic Planning Goals and Objectives be strongly considered for funding in the 2017 budget, which 
will be considered by the Board of Directors for adoption in November.  
 
 



 
Approval of 2017 Strategic Plan               Agenda Item O-1 
August 9, 2016 Board Regular Meeting               Page 2 

 
 
Moved by Director ________________, Seconded by Director _______________, Carried __________  
 

 



 

 
Cit rus Heights W ater Dist r ict  

 

STRATEGI C PLAN  

SESSI ON SUMMARY 
 

Sunday, June 26, 2016  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

designed and facilitated by 
 

 
Laura Mason-Smith 

916-485-3582  www.masonsmith.com 
 

 



 

Cit rus Heights W ater  Dist r ict  

2 0 1 7 - 2 0 2 0  STRATEGI C PLAN SESSI ON SUMMARY 
Sunday, June 26, 2016 

 

7-3-16 (1)                     
 Page 2 

 

CONTENTS 

 

Topics Page 

Overview 3 

I nt roduct ion 4 

Dist r ict  Accom plishments and St rengths 4 

Reaffirmat ion of the Mission, Vision, and Core Values 5 

I ssues, Factors, and Trends  6-7 

Three-Year Goals – 2017-2020 7 

2017-2020 St rategic Object ives for the Three-Year Goals 8-12 

At tachment  A:   Dist r ict  Commitments 13-14 

At tachment  B:   Parking Lot  – Objects for Considerat ion After 2017 15 

At tachment  C:  Organizat ion Chart  16 



 

Cit rus Heights W ater  Dist r ict  

2 0 1 7 - 2 0 2 0  STRATEGI C PLAN SESSI ON SUMMARY 
Sunday, June 26, 2016 

 

7-3-16 (1)                     
 Page 3 

 

OVERVI EW  
 

On Sunday, June 26, 2016, the following members of the Board and Managem ent  of the Cit rus Heights Water 
Dist r ict  met  to develop the Dist r ict ’s 2017-2020 St rategic Plan:  
 

Allen B. Dains    President  of the Board  
Caryl F. Sheehan    Vice President  of the Board 
Raymond A. Riehle   Director  
Robert  A. Churchill   General Manager 
Hilary M. St raus    Assistant  General Manager 

  Paul A. Diet r ich    Project  Manager 
  David M. Gordon    Operat ions Manager 

Lisa A. Smoot      Management  Services Supervisor/ Chief Board Clerk 
  Susan K. Sohal    Account ing Supervisor 
  Br ian M. Hensley    Water Quality Supervisor 
  Tim  R. Cut ler    Water Dist r ibut ion Supervisor 

Missy A. Pier i    Associate Civ il Engineer 
  Rex W. Meurer    Water Efficiency Coordinator     
 
 
The session was facilitated by Laura Mason-Sm ith of Mason-Smith SUCCESS STRATEGI ES.  Out lined on the 
following pages is a summary of the St rategic Plan Session results.  



 

Cit rus Heights W ater  Dist r ict  

2 0 1 7 - 2 0 2 0  STRATEGI C PLAN SESSI ON SUMMARY 
Sunday, June 26, 2016 

 

7-3-16 (1)                     
 Page 4 

 

I NTRODUCTI ON  
 

Board Chair  Allen Dains welcomed everyone and called the meet ing to order.  General Manager Robert  Churchill 
explained that  the purpose of the session was to develop the 2017-1010 St rategic Plan for the Dist r ict .   
 
 

DI STRI CT ACCOMPLI SHMENTS AND STRENGTHS 
 

The part icipants ident if ied the following Dist r ict  City accom plishments and strengths: 

1. The Dist r ict  is running very well;  we do things r ight  and demonst rate accountability  
2. Excellent  customer service/ relat ions and posit ive public percept ions 
3. Effect ive drought  response programs and posit ive results 
4. Great  people – customers, elected Board members, and staff  
5. Ext remely effect ive budget  process – opt ions, not ices, public engagement , and rate adjustments 
6. Dist r ict ’s im portant  role in the Cit rus Heights community 
7. Leadership in the local water indust ry 
8. Reliability , t rustworthiness, and follow- through on comm itm ents  
9. Foresight  and on-call capabilit ies 
10. Well development   
11. Proact ively preparing a well-established foundat ion for the future 
12. Building capacity, both externally and internally 
13. Adm inist rat ion building remodel, and water main beyond San Juan High School 
14. Professional response to the San Juan and Sacramento Suburban Water Dist r icts’ merger 
15. Resilient  and very professional workforce 
16. Succession planning 
17. Both staff longevity and staff taking on new posit ions and roles  
18. High level of respect  really stands out  
19. I ncreasingly com ing together and working in unison 
20. I ntegr ity throughout  comes from the top 
21. Fam ily atmosphere and mutual respect  – a great  place to work!  



 

Cit rus Heights W ater  Dist r ict  

2 0 1 7 - 2 0 2 0  STRATEGI C PLAN SESSI ON SUMMARY 
Sunday, June 26, 2016 

 

7-3-16 (1)                     
 Page 5 

 

REAFFI RMATI ON OF THE DI STRI CT’S MI SSI ON AND CORE VALUES 
 

The part icipants reaffirmed the Dist r ict ’s Mission, Vision, Core Values, and Commitments as follows. 
 

MI SSI ON STATEMENT 
 

The m ission of the Cit rus Heights Water Dist r ict  is to furnish a dependable supply of safe, quality water delivered 

to its customers in an efficient , responsive, and affordable manner. 

 

 

VI SI ON STATEMENT 
 

The Cit rus Heights Water dist r ict  will cont inue to evolve as a dynam ic provider of municipal water service to 

assure that  our customers receive the best  value without  giving it  a second thought . 

 

 

CORE VALUES 
not  in pr ior ity order 

 

I ntegr ity 

Teamwork 

Dependability  

Accountability  

Professionalism  

 

COMMI TMENTS 

(See At tachment  A)  



 

Cit rus Heights W ater  Dist r ict  

2 0 1 7 - 2 0 2 0  STRATEGI C PLAN SESSI ON SUMMARY 
Sunday, June 26, 2016 

 

7-3-16 (1)                     
 Page 6 

 

I SSUES, FACTORS, AND TRENDS 
 

The part icipants ident if ied the following key issues, factors, and t rends that  do or could affect  the Dist r ict :  
 

1. San Juan Water Dist r ict / Regional Water  Authority Reliability  Study 
2. SGMA im plicat ions 
3. Water banking 
4. Public engagement , informat ion, and educat ion 
5. Aging infrast ructure (mains, meters, buildings, yards)  
6. CI P pressure cont rol, power generat ion, and SMUD interact ion 
7. Outside agencies regarding intert ies 
8. CI P Master Plan 
9. Billing and HR software updates 
10. Document  and asset  management  
11. State and regional fees increasing 
12. San Juan Water Dist r ict  (SJWD) capital projects funding im pacts on our Dist r ict  
13. LAFCO process of closing “donut  holes”  
14. Well development  and sight  acquisit ion 
15. New County requirements, such as paving and others 
16. State mandates, both known and unknown 
17. 24- inch water main replacement  requirements 
18. SGMA im plementat ion 
19. Conservat ion requirement  and Water Resources Control Board oversight  
20. San Juan Water Dist r ict  wholesale debt  
21. EPA and other regulat ions, and regulatory cost  dr ivers 
22. Project  flexibility  within the CI P 
23. Corporat ion Yard I mprovement  Project  
24. Operat ions Building remodel 
25. HR policy updat ing, succession planning, career laddering, hir ing, t raining, and records retent ion 



 

Cit rus Heights W ater  Dist r ict  

2 0 1 7 - 2 0 2 0  STRATEGI C PLAN SESSI ON SUMMARY 
Sunday, June 26, 2016 

 

7-3-16 (1)                     
 Page 7 

 

I SSUES, FACTORS, AND TRENDS (cont inued)  
 

26. Document  and asset  management  
27. Folsom Lake reliability  
28. Water conservat ion regulat ions 
29. Water supply reliability  
30. Potent ial consolidat ion of water dist r icts in our region 
31. Public goods charge 
32. Water t ransfer 
33. Avoiding new debt  
34. Ratepayer involvem ent  
35. Human resources expenses for healthcare and PERS 
36. Potent ial implicat ions of the “ I nternet  of Things”  
 
 

THREE- YEAR GOALS –  2 0 1 7 -2 0 2 0  
(not  in pr ior ity order)  

 
After extensive discussion, the part icipants pr ior it ized the Dist r ict ’s five top Three-Year Goals:  
 

• Project  2 0 3 0  –  W ater  Main I m provem ents 

 

• Meter  Replacem ent  Program  

 

• W ell Developm ent  

 

• Capita l I m provem ents Program  

 

• Organizat ion- W ide Object ives 



 

Cit rus Heights W ater  Dist r ict  

2 0 1 7 - 2 0 2 0  STRATEGI C PLAN SESSI ON SUMMARY 
Sunday, June 26, 2016 

 

7-3-16 (1)                     
 Page 8 

 

C I T R U S  H E I G H T S  W A T E R  D I S T R I C T        2 0 1 7  S T R A T E G I C  O B J E C T I V E S  

 

THREE- YEAR GOAL:  PROJECT 2 0 3 0  –  W ATER MAI N I MPROVEMENTS 
 

Object ives to be Com pleted in the 2 0 1 7  Year 
 

#  W HEN W HO W HAT STATUS COMMENTS 

 Done On Target  Revised  

1 9/ 17 Borey S. 
(Lead) , Paul 
D., Missy P., 
ACE, Lisa S., 
Beth S. & 
Susan S.  

Asset  inventory into ESRI   
 

    

2. 9/ 17 Missy P. 
(Lead) , Susan 
S., ACE, Paul 
D., David G., 
Brian H., & 
Hilary S.  

Prepare Request  for Proposal (RFP)  for an 
Engineering/ Funding Planning Study  
 

    

3. 2018 Missy P. 
(Lead) , Susan 
S., Paul D., 
David G., ACE, 
Brian H., & 
Hilary S. 

Gain Board direct ion based on opt ions from  the 
Engineering/ Funding Planning Study 
 

    

 



 

Cit rus Heights W ater  Dist r ict  

2 0 1 7 - 2 0 2 0  STRATEGI C PLAN SESSI ON SUMMARY 
Sunday, June 26, 2016 

 

7-3-16 (1)                     
 Page 9 

 

C I T R U S  H E I G H T S  W A T E R  D I S T R I C T        2 0 1 7  S T R A T E G I C  O B J E C T I V E S  

 
THREE- YEAR GOAL:  METER REPLACEMENT PROGRAM  
 

Object ives to be Com pleted in the 2 0 1 7  Year 
 

#  W HEN W HO W HAT STATUS COMMENTS 

 Done On Target  Revised  

1 7/ 17 Kelly D. 
(Lead) , Rex 
M., Susan S., 
Alberto P., 
David G., I T, 
and Hilary S.  

I dent ify technology plat form  
 

    

2. 7/ 17 Kelly D. 
(Lead) , Rex 
M., Susan S., 
Alberto P., 
David G., I T, 
and Hilary S.  

I dent ify replacem ent  t im eline 
 

    

3. 8/ 17 Susan S. 
(Lead) , 
Alberto P., 
Kelly D., Rex 
M., David G., 
IT, and Hilary 
S.  

Prepare cost  est im ates 
 

    

4. 11/ 17 Susan S 
(Lead) , 
Alberto P., 
Kelly D., Rex 
M., David G., 
IT, and Hilary 
S. 

Establish Meter Replacem ent  Fund Reserve and 
t im eline 
 

    



 

Cit rus Heights W ater  Dist r ict  

2 0 1 7 - 2 0 2 0  STRATEGI C PLAN SESSI ON SUMMARY 
Sunday, June 26, 2016 

 

7-3-16 (1)                     
 Page 10 

 

C I T R U S  H E I G H T S  W A T E R  D I S T R I C T        2 0 1 7  S T R A T E G I C  O B J E C T I V E S  

 

THREE- YEAR GOAL:  W ELL DEVELOPMENT 
 

Object ives to be Com pleted in the 2 0 1 7  Year 
 

#  W HEN W HO W HAT STATUS COMMENTS 

 Done On Target  Revised  

1. 1/ 17 Brian H. (Lead) , 
David G., Missy 
P., Susan S., 
Hilary S. and 
Real Estate Rep. 

Acquire the site for  Well # 7 and successfully test  
the hole 
 

    

2. 1/ 17 Brian H. (Lead) , 
David G., Missy 
P., Susan S., and 
Hilary S. 

Com plete the Peak Dem and Assessm ent  (PDA)  
using current  data 
 

    

3. 3/ 17 Brian H. (Lead) , 
David G., Missy 
P., Susan S., and 
Hilary S. 

Com plete upgrades to Palm  and Sunrise Wells 
 

    

4. 12/ 17 Brian H. (Lead) , 
David G., Missy 
P., Susan S., and 
Hilary S. 

Com plete design and grant  funding for # 7 
 

    

5. 1-12/ 17 Brian H. (Lead) , 
David G., Missy 
P., Susan S., 
Hilary S. and 
Real Estate Rep. 

Cont inue other well site acquisit ion 
 

    

 



 

Cit rus Heights W ater  Dist r ict  

2 0 1 7 - 2 0 2 0  STRATEGI C PLAN SESSI ON SUMMARY 
Sunday, June 26, 2016 

 

7-3-16 (1)                     
 Page 11 

 

C I T R U S  H E I G H T S  W A T E R  D I S T R I C T        2 0 1 7  S T R A T E G I C  O B J E C T I V E S  
 

THREE- YEAR GOAL:  CAPI TAL I MPROVEMENTS PROGRAM 
 

Object ives to be Com pleted in the 2 0 1 7  Year 
 

#  W HEN W HO W HAT STATUS COMMENTS 

 Done On Target  Revised  

1 6/ 17 Paul D. 
(Lead) , Missy 
P., ACE, Susan 
S., Alberto P. 
and Hilary S.  

Update the Ten-Year Capital Im provem ent  
Program  (CI P)  
 

    

2. 9/ 17 Paul D. (Lead) , 
Missy P.,  ACE, 
Susan S., 
Alberto P. and 
Hilary S. 

Determ ine one-year CI P opt ions 
 

    

3. 8/ 17 Paul D (Lead) , 
Missy P.,  ACE, 
Susan S., 
Alberto P. and 
Hilary S. 

Com plete the Operat ions Building design 
 

    

4. 10/ 17 Paul D. 
(Lead) , Missy 
P., ACE, Susan 
S., Alberto P. 
and Hilary S. 

Com plete the Corporat ion Yard build 
 

    

5. 12/ 17 Paul D. 
(Lead) , Missy 
P., ACE, Susan 
S., Alberto P. 
and Hilary S. 

Com plete the Pressure Reduct ion/ Power 
Generat ion plan 
 

    

 



 

Cit rus Heights W ater  Dist r ict  

2 0 1 7 - 2 0 2 0  STRATEGI C PLAN SESSI ON SUMMARY 
Sunday, June 26, 2016 

 

7-3-16 (1)                     
 Page 12 

 

C I T R U S  H E I G H T S  W A T E R  D I S T R I C T        2 0 1 7  S T R A T E G I C  O B J E C T I V E S  

 
THREE- YEAR GOAL:  ORGANI ZATI ON-W I DE OBJECTI VES 
 

Object ives to be Com pleted in the 2 0 1 7  Year 
 

#  W HEN W HO W HAT STATUS COMMENTS 

 Done On Target  Revised  

1. Q1 2017 Susan S. (Lead) , Alberto 
P., Lisa S., Beth S. & I T 

Develop the Finance/ Ut ilit y/ HR/ Tim ekeeping system  
software replacem ents Request  for Proposal (RFP)  

    

2. Q1 2017 Hilary S. (Lead) ,  Lisa S., 
Beth S.,  Susan S.,  David 
G. and Missy P.  

Com plete Perform ance Evaluat ion System  policy and 
adm inist rat ive updates  

    

2. Q2 2017 Lisa S. (Lead) , Hilary S., 
Susan S., David G., 
Beth S. and Board  

Prepare RFP for new General Counsel Services and get  
recom m endat ions from  other agencies 

    

3. Q3 2017 General Counsel, Hilary 
S., David G., Susan S., 
Brian H. and Kelly D. 

Update Intert ie Agreem ents:  
• Conduct  needs assessm ent  
• Meet  with other agencies 

    

4. Q3 2017 Lisa (Lead) , Hilary S., 
Beth S.,  Susan S.,  
David G., Paul D. and 
Em ploym ent  Pract ices 
Special Counsel 

Update HR Policies:  
• Needs assessm ent  
• Resource assessm ent  
• Em ployee com m unicat ion 

    

5. Q3-4 2017 Hilary S. (Lead) ,  Board, 
Lisa S. and Susan S.  

Pursue Com m unity Leadership Developm ent  for future 
Board m em bers 

    

6. Q4 2017 Lisa S. (Lead) , Beth S., 
Susan S. and Hilary S.   

Com plete docum ent  m anagem ent / indexing:  
• Update retent ion schedule 
• Enterprise-wide docum ent  im aging st rategy 

    

7. Q4 2017 Lisa S. (Lead) , Hilary 
S., Beth S., Susan S.,  
David G., Paul D., and 
Missy P. 

Address career laddering:  
• Create Em ployee Relat ions Com m it tee (ERC)  
• Create j ob descript ions 

    

 



 

Cit rus Heights W ater  Dist r ict  

2 0 1 7 - 2 0 2 0  STRATEGI C PLAN SESSI ON SUMMARY 
Sunday, June 26, 2016 

 

7-3-16 (1)                     
 Page 13 

 

ATTACHMENT A  

 

DI STRI CT COMMI TMENTS 
 

We commit  to being good stewards of our water supply and the environment . 

 

We commit  to responsible resource management  of the Dist r ict ’s capital, f iscal and personnel assets. 

 

We commit  to provide reliable and dependable water service at  an affordable cost . 

 

We commit  to provide a water supply that  meets or exceeds State and federal water quality standards. 

 

We commit  to provide customer service that  is ext raordinary to both our rate-payers and to our work team. 

 

We commit  to be a valuable resource for our customers in consistent ly providing fr iendly, respect ful service. 

 

We commit  to provide informat ion that  is accurate, complete and relevant . 

 

We commit  to excel beyond our commitments when moments of opportunity ar ise. 

 

We commit  to conduct  our affairs with the highest  ethical standards. 

 

We commit  to develop and implement  reasonable policies and procedures that  foster integr ity and t rust .  

We commit  to have a fr iendly, courteous and professional person readily available to telephone customers dur ing 

business hours. 



 

Cit rus Heights W ater  Dist r ict  

2 0 1 7 - 2 0 2 0  STRATEGI C PLAN SESSI ON SUMMARY 
Sunday, June 26, 2016 

 

7-3-16 (1)                     
 Page 14 

 

DI STRI CT COMMI TMENTS (cont inued)  

We commit  to have a well- t rained staff that  supports one another in opportunit ies for personal and professional 

growth. 

We commit  to provide the equipment , technology and t raining necessary to assure that  our custom ers received 

the best  value in water service. 

We commit  to work together for each other and for our customers. 

We commit  to provide employee compensat ion and benefits commensurate with the public agency marketplace in 

the Sacramento region. 

We commit  to an empowered staff that  is accountable, team-oriented and support ive of each member’s 

performance. 

We commit  to create a posit ive and safe work environment  that  recognizes and rewards superior performance. 

We commit  to hire progressive employees that  will fulf ill the m ission of the Dist r ict .  

We commit  to support  econom ic growth by ensuring water  service adequate to meet  new custom er demand. 

We commit  to collaborate with other agencies in support  of regional endeavors of mutual interest  and benefit .  

We commit  to efficient ly and effect ively accomplish the day’s business while preparing for the future. 

We commit  to choosing a great  at t itude. 



 

Cit rus Heights W ater  Dist r ict  

2 0 1 7 - 2 0 2 0  STRATEGI C PLAN SESSI ON SUMMARY 
Sunday, June 26, 2016 

 

7-3-16 (1)                     
 Page 15 

 

ATTACHMENT B 

PARKI NG LOT –  OBJECTI VES FOR CONSI DERATI ON AFTER 2 0 1 7  

 

1. LAFCO annexat ions:  

a. Reevaluate approach 

b. Pr ior it ize 

c. Develop proposed st rategy 

 

2. Assess use of surplus well sites 

 

3. Redo the rate model for 2018 

 



 

Cit rus Heights W ater  Dist r ict  

2 0 1 7 - 2 0 2 0  STRATEGI C PLAN SESSI ON SUMMARY 
Sunday, June 26, 2016 

 

7-3-16 (1)                     
 Page 16 

 

ATTACHMENT C 

ORGANI ZATI ON CHART 

 

                    

Board of Directors

Finance, Human Resources, 
I nformat ion Technology, Risk 

Management , Water Conservat ion, 
Clerk of the Board & Special Projects

Assist . General Manager /  
Treasurer

General Manager /  
Secretary

Project  Manager

Mgt . Svs. Spec./ Dep. 
Bd. Clerk ( .25)

Accounts Receivable 
Specialist

Customer Services 
Technician /  

Representat ive (2)

Management  Svs. 
Sup./ Chief Bd. Ck.

Water Meter 
Technician

Water Efficiency 
Coordinator

Water Dist r ibut ion Lead 
Worker/ Operator (3)

Water Dist r ibut ion 
Worker/ Operator (6)

Water Quality 
Technician (2)

Water Dist r ibut ion 
Specialist

Purchasing Specialist

Water Quality 
Supervisor

Management  Services Engineer ing /  Capital ProjectsOperat ions

Operat ions and Maintenance of Water 
Dist r ibut ion System, Groundwater 

Product ion, Water Quality, Facilit ies, 
Fleet  and Purchasing

Engineer ing Technician

Associate Civil Engineer 
(2)

Senior Construct ion 
I nspector 

Operat ions Manager

Capital I mprovement  Program (CI P)  
Development  and I mplementat ion, 
GI S/ mapping, Plan Checking and 

I nspect ions

Account ing Supervisor /  
Assessor/ Collector

Total Authorized Posit ions:  32

Water Dist r ibut ion 
Supervisor

Senior AccountantMgt . Svs. Spec. /  
Dep. Bd. Clerk 

( .75)

 



AGENDA ITEM:  N-1 
 

CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT 

 
DISTRICT STAFF REPORT TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

AUGUST 9, 2016 REGULAR MEETING 
 

 

 

SUBJECT           : TRAINING / CONTINUED EDUCATION / MEETINGS 
STATUS          : Information Item 
REPORT DATE      : August 3, 2016 
PREPARED BY      : Robert A. Churchill, General Manager 
 

 
Upcoming training, continued education and meeting opportunities for Directors and Management Staff for   
consideration.  New items are noted in bold italics. 
 Common Abbreviations: ACWA Association of California Water Agencies 
     ASCE  American Society of Civil Engineers 
     AWWA American Water Works Association 
     CSDA  California Special Districts Association 
     JPIA  Joint Powers Insurance Authority 
     WEF  Water Education Foundation 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
   

A. Sep 28-Oct 1 ASCE National Conference 
Portland, OR 
 
Recommended Attendees: GM Churchill 
 

B. Oct 10-13 CSDA Annual Conference 
San Diego, CA 
 
Recommended Attendees:  
 

C. Oct 24-27 AWWA CA/NV Section Fall Conference 
San Diego, CA 

 
Recommended Attendees:  

 
D. Nov 28-29 ACWA-JPIA Fall Conference 

Anaheim, CA 
 
Recommended Attendees: Directors Dains, Sheehan, Riehle, IGM Straus  

 
E. Nov 30-Dec 2 ACWA Fall Conference 

Anaheim, CA 
 

Recommended Attendees: Directors Dains, Sheehan, Riehle, IGM Straus  
 

F. WEF 2016 Water Tours 
 

Oct 19-21 Northern California Tour 
Nov 2-3 San Joaquin River Restoration Tour  

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 



AGENDA ITEM:  N-2 
 
 

CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT 

 
DISTRICT STAFF REPORT TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

AUGUST 09, 2016 REGULAR MEETING 
 

 

SUBJECT           : FUNDS AND RESERVES POLICY AMENDMENTS 
STATUS          : Action Item 
REPORT DATE      : August 4, 2016 
PREPARED BY      : Susan K. Sohal, Accounting Supervisor 
   Hilary M. Sohal, Assistant General Manager 
 

 

OBJECTIVE: 
Consider approving amendments to District Fiscal Management Policies regarding District Funds and 
Reserves. 
 
BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS: 
The District’s Fiscal Management Policies contain separate policies relating to the District’s Funds and 
Reserves that are used to organize and allocate all District monies for various purposes. These policies 
define the purpose for which the specified Fund or Reserve is to be used, and set forth certain 
responsibilities and restrictions on the transfer or expenditure of monies.  
 
Five of the Funds and Reserves policies are being presented for discussion with proposed amendments or 
deletion to policy. In addition, three new proposed policies are being presented pertaining to the two newly 
adopted Funds and new Reserve in 2015 and one concerning the existing Debt Services Reserve.  Copies of 
each of the policies with proposed amendments are attached to this staff report. The proposed changes or 
deletions will serve to do the following: 

 

• Establish three new policies for the specified Fund or Reserve.   
 

• Amend three existing Funds: Rate Stabilization Reserve, Capital Improvement Reserve, and 
Employment-Related Benefits Reserve. 

 

• Delete two policies: the Depreciation Reserve Policy and the Connection Fund Policy, and 
consolidate those two funds with the Capital Improvement Reserve. 
 

The amended Policies would continue to allow for monies to be transferred in or out of most of the Funds 
and Reserves at the direction of the District Treasurer with monthly reports to the Board on said actions, 
except for the Rate Stabilization Reserve. For that fund, expenditure or transfer of monies out would remain 
under the authority of the Board of Directors. The amounts of monies to be retained in each of the specified 
Funds and Reserves are expressed as “targets” rather than absolute dollar amounts to serve as a guideline for 
managing each Fund or Reserve. The Board of Directors, and the Treasurer under the Board’s direction, 
retains the authority to determine appropriate levels for each source under circumstances that will 
undoubtedly change over time. 
 
Funds with proposed amendments: 

Policy 6220, Rate Stabilization Reserve. This Fund was established in 1995 to provide funds for use 
to ensure financial and customer rate stability.  The proposed strike out prevision in Attachment 1 is 
addressed with the creation of the Debt Services Reserve Policy.  Therefore, the Rate Stabilization 



 
 
Funds and Reserves Policy Amendments     Page 2 
August 09, 2016 Board of Directors Agenda 

 
 

Reserve will no longer be available for debt payment. 
 
Policy 6240, Capital Improvement Reserve. This Fund was established in 1995 to provide funds for 
use in evaluating, designing and constructing, replacing or rehabilitating facilities and for new 
capital facilities to benefit District customers.  The Depreciation Reserve and Connection Fund are 
proposed to be merged into the Capital Improvement Reserve.   
 
Policy 6270, Employment-Related Benefits Reserve. This Fund was established in 1995 to set aside 
funds over an extended period of time to pay the costs of employment-related benefits for existing 
and retired District employees.  This proposed change to this Reserve is the inclusion of 
Management Leave and CTO (Compensated Time Off) as allowable uses of the Reserve. 
 

Funds requiring policies: 
As the funds were created by the Board, policies governing their use are required.  

 
The Debt Services Reserve is a restricted reserve and was established as a way to set monies aside to 
maintain debt coverage ratios in accordance with bond covenants or other agreements or 
requirements associated with the issuance of debt by the District.  

 
The Water Supply Reserve was established in 2015 as a way to set monies aside for use in 
evaluating, designing and constructing, replacing or rehabilitating capital facilities such as wells, 
water supply projects, and recycled and reclaimed water projects. 
 
The Water Efficiency Fund was established in 2015 as a way to set monies (a target of $200,000) 
aside for use in a water supply shortage, water supply interruption, to meet 
Federal/State/Regional/Local mandates or for other water efficiency related programmatic needs.  
 

Policies recommended for deletion:  
 
The Depreciation Reserve and Connection Fund Policies are proposed to be combined with the Capital 
Improvement Reserve to be at least the amount needed to meet the District’s estimated capital outlays for 
replacement and rehabilitation of capital facilities during the current and following fiscal years with the goal 
of reaching 5% of the total capital assets (less equipment and machinery) when reasonably feasible.  
Combining the funds would allow for a more efficient accounting method of the capital assets as a whole 
rather than managing these Funds separately. 
 

Policy 6230, Depreciation Reserve.  This Fund was established in 1995 as a way to set monies aside 
to replace or rehabilitate capital facilities at the end of useful life.  This fund is proposed to be 
combined with the Capital Improvement Reservesfor all capital facilities: replacement, 
rehabilitations and new. 
 
Policy 6250, Connection Fund.  This Fund was established in 1995 as a depository for Capacity Fees 
paid in conjunction with development or redevelopment. In this fund, monies were set aside for use 
in evaluating, designing and constructing capital facilities.  This fund is proposed to be combined to 
with the Capital Improvement Reserve for all capital facilities: replacement, rehabilitations and new. 

 
 



 
 
Funds and Reserves Policy Amendments     Page 3 
August 09, 2016 Board of Directors Agenda 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve proposed amendments to the following District Fiscal Management Policies: 

Policy 6220 Rate Stabilization Reserve Attachment 1 

Policy 6240 Capital Improvement Reserve  Attachment 2 

Policy 6270 Employment-Related Benefits Reserve Attachment 3 

 

Approve the addition of the following District Fiscal Management Policies: 

Policy 6225 Debt Services Reserve Attachment 4 

Policy 6245 Water Supply Reserve Attachment 5 

Policy 6280  Water Efficiency Fund Attachment 6 

 
Approve the deletion of the following District Fiscal Management Policies (Note: these two policies will be 

consolidated with the Policy 6240 (Attachment 2) as noted in staff report above: 

Policy 6230 Depreciation Reserve   Attachment 7 

Policy 6250 Connection Fund Attachment 8 

 
ACTION: 
 

Moved by Director ____________, Seconded by Director ___________, Carried __________  

 
 



































AGENDA ITEM:  N-3 
 

CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT 

 
DISTRICT STAFF REPORT TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

AUGUST 9, 2016 REGULAR MEETING 
   

    

 

SUBJECT           : RWA REGIONAL WATER RELIABILITY PLAN 
STATUS          : Action Item 
REPORT DATE      : August 4, 2016 
PREPARED BY      : Robert A. Churchill, General Manager 
 

 

OBJECTIVE: 
Consider approval of a Project Agreement with the Regional Water Authority to participate in a Regional 
Water Reliability Plan.  
 
BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS: 
 
Robert Swartz, Technical Services Manager for the Regional Water Authority, provided the CHWD Board 
of Directors with an overview of RWA’s Regional Water Reliability Study at the regular Board of Directors 
Meeting of July 12, 2016.  At that time, the CHWD Board indicated interest in CHWD participating in this 
RWA initiative.  
 
At the Board Meeting, Mr. Swartz explained why RWA is undertaking this Plan preparation as called for in 
RWA’s 2013 Strategic Plan.  The drought has highlighted significant threats to local water resources and the 
Plan could help protect long-term water resources in the region. Swartz then presented some key elements 
that would be anticipated to be included in the Plan and expected outcomes, including a Regional Water 
Bank. He concluded by providing an overview of the Plan development’s budget and anticipated cost to 
each participating agency, including CHWD.  
 
CHWD’s Phase 1 share of cost is anticipated to be $9,600, with a not-too-exceed cost of $16,000.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve entering into a Project Agreement with the Regional Water Authority to participate in a Regional 
Water Reliability Plan and authorize the General Manager to execute the Agreement.  
 
ACTION: 
 
Moved by Director _________________, Seconded by Director _________________, Carried __________  
 
 

 

 
 



  AGENDA ITEM: N-4 

 CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT 

 
DISTRICT STAFF REPORT TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AUGUST 9, 2016 REGULAR MEETING 
 

 

SUBJECT : LIMERICK WAY, DUBLIN WAY, TIPPERARY WAY AND GALWAY CT 
  PAVEMENT RESTORATION PROJECT 
STATUS : Action Item 
REPORT DATE : August 3, 2016 
PREPARED BY : David M. Gordon, Operations Manager 
 

 

OBJECTIVE: 
Consider acceptance of a bid to restore pavement following replacement of water mains and services by 
District Operations staff on portions of Limerick Way, Dublin Way, Tipperary Way and Galway Court 
in the City of Citrus Heights. 
 
BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS: 
 
District Operations staff is nearing completion of replacement of water mains and services on portions 
of Limerick Way, Dublin Way, Tipperary Way and Galway Court in the City of Citrus Heights.  Bid 
Packages were distributed to fifteen contractors and three material suppliers to restore approximately 
7,300 square feet of 4” asphaltic concrete (AC) paving. 
 
The District received four (4) sealed proposals on August 3, 2016, at which time proposals were opened 
and read publicly.  The apparent low bidder is Central Valley Engineering & Asphalt, Inc. of Roseville, 
CA.  Bids received are as follows:  
 

1. Central Valley Engineering & Asphalt, Inc. $ 38,982.00 
2. Martin Brothers Construction, Inc. $ 52,341.00 
3. Arrow Construction $ 58,400.00 
4. Sierra Asphalt, Inc. $ 88,987.00 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Accept the bid of Central Valley Engineering & Asphalt, Inc. in the amount of $38,982.00 and establish 
a change order contingency fund in the amount of $3,900.00 (10%).  Authorize the General Manager to 
execute the contract. 
 
ACTION: 
 
Moved by Director _____________, Seconded by Director _____________, Carried ______________ 
 

 



AGENDA ITEM:  N-5 
 

CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT 

 
DISTRICT STAFF REPORT TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

AUGUST 9, 2016 REGULAR MEETING 
   

    

 

SUBJECT           : SJWD DRAFT WHOLESALE FINANCIAL PLAN AND WATER RATE  
UPDATE STUDY  

STATUS          : Information/Discussion Item 
REPORT DATE      : August 4, 2016 
PREPARED BY      : Robert A. Churchill, General Manager 
 

 

OBJECTIVE: 
Receive and review San Juan Water District’s Draft Wholesale Financial Plan and Water Rate Update Study 
and 150-Day Advance Written Notice of Proposed Changes in Water Rates and Charges.   
 
BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS: 
Attached for review is SJWD’s 150-Day Advance Written Notice of Proposed Changes in Water Rates and 
Charges dated August 2, 2016 and its Draft Wholesale Financial Plan and Water Rate Update Study dated 
July 29, 2016. 
 
Due to the timing of receiving this information, staff has not had an opportunity to review and comment on 
the contents.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Review. 
 
ACTION: 
 
Moved by Director _________________, Seconded by Director _________________, Carried __________  
 
 

 

 
 













































































AGENDA ITEMS:  PM-1 – 6 

CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT 
 

PROJECT MANAGER’S REPORT TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
AUGUST 9, 2016 REGULAR MEETING 

 

 
SUBJECT  : PROJECT MANAGER’S REPORT 
STATUS : Information Item 
REPORT DATE : August 3, 2016  
PREPARED BY : Paul A. Dietrich, Project Manager 
 
 

Significant assignments and activities for the Project Manager (PM) and District engineering, 
construction inspection, and geographical information system maintenance staff are summarized 
below.  I will be available at the meeting to answer questions and/or provide additional details. 
 
New values or projects noted in bold italics 
 
PM-1 ACCEPTED WATER SYSTEMS 
 
Recent additions to the District’s water distribution system that were constructed by independent 
State Licensed contractors on behalf of private developers / owners, inspected by the District and 
formally accepted: 
 
Project 
 

Count   
 

 

Facilities Value 

None    

PM-2 PROJECTS UNDER CONSTRUCTION BY PRIVATE DEVELOPERS 
 
Water distribution system facilities currently under construction by independent State Licensed 
contractors on behalf of private developers / owners requiring District inspection: 
 
Project 
 

Location 
 

Status 
 

McDonalds 
(2015-60) 
 

5402 Sunrise Blvd 50% Complete 

Northridge Grove 
47 Condominiums 
(2013-59) 
 

5555 Mariposa Ave 60% Complete 

Citrus Heights City Hall 
(2015-54) 
 

6350 Fountain Square Dr 80% Complete 

Memory Care Facility 
(2015-56) 
 
 

6825-33 Sunrise Blvd 70% Complete 



 
 
Project Manager’s Report 
Page 2 
August 9, 2016 Board of Directors Agenda 

 
Project 
 

Location 
 

Status 
 

Dundee Estates 
3 Lot Subdivision 
(2015-58) 
 

Mariposa Ave @ Highland Ave 98% Complete 

California American Water Co. 
San Juan Avenue Tank - Intertie 
and Water Service 
(2015-39) 
 

5444 San Juan Ave 98% Complete 

Capitol Nursery Plaza 
Commercial Center 
(2015-50) 
 

Sunrise Blvd @ Madison Ave Substantially Complete 

Sylvan Middle School 
(2015-63) 
 

7085 Auburn Blvd Substantially Complete 

PM-3 CONTRACTOR / DEVELOPER PROJECTS PENDING CONSTRUCTION 
 
Project 
 

Location Status 

Dignity Health Building 
(2015-55) 
 

7115 Greenback Ln Awaiting System 
Construction 

Bearpaw Expansion 
Commercial Building 
(2015-59) 
 

7524 Old Auburn Rd Awaiting System 
Construction 

Louis-Orlando Bus Transfer Point 
(2015-66) 
 

Louis Ln @ Orlando Ave Awaiting System 
Construction 

Meier Estates 
7 Lot Subdivision 
(2015-68) 
 

North Sims Way Awaiting System 
Construction 

PM-4 PROPOSED DISTRICT CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS 
 
Project Plans and Contracts currently under review and development by the Engineering Department: 
 
Project 
 

Location Status 

Fair Way Intertie with 
City of Roseville 
(2011-01) 
 

9955 Fair Way Agreement – 99% 
Plans – 100% 
Cost Estimate – 100% 



 
 
Project Manager’s Report 
Page 3 
August 9, 2016 Board of Directors Agenda 

 
Project 
 

Location Status 

Blossom Hill Dr Intertie with 
City of Roseville 
(2012-09) 
 

Blossom Hill Dr at  
1100 Main Sail Cir 

Agreement – 99% 
Plans – 100% 
Cost Estimate – 100% 
 

Crestmont Ave Intertie with 
City of Roseville 
(2012-10) 
 

Crestmont Ave at 
8199 Bonnie Oak Way 

Agreement – 99% 
Plans – 100% 
Cost Estimate – 100% 

Baird Way 12” Water Main 
Area West Engineers, Inc. 
(2015-31) 
 

Auburn Blvd to Holly Dr Preparing to Pothole 

Corporation Yard Improvements 
Phase 1 
(2015-02) 
 

6230 Sylvan Road Preparing Request for 
Design & Const Mgmt 
Proposals 

Highwood Ave & Rosa Vista Ave 
8” Water Mains 
Warren Consulting Engineers 
(2015-33) 
 

Highwood Ave at Rosa Vista 
Ave 

Design Underway 

PM-5 PROJECTS CONTRACTED BY CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT 
 
Capital Improvement Projects currently under construction by Citrus Heights Water District 
contractors requiring coordination and inspection by the District: 
 
Project 
 

Location Status 

Mariposa Ave 
Civil Engineering Construction 
(2016-30) 
 

Limerick Way to Farmgate 
Way and Eastgate Ave to 
Northeast Circle (south end) 

80% Complete 
 

PM-6 CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS PROJECTS 
 
City of Citrus Heights Projects requiring coordination and inspection by the District: 
 
None 



July 7, 2016 7157 CANELO HILLS DR

July 11, 2016 7030 DRYWOOD WAY

July 11, 2016 8281 CROSSOAK WAY

July 5, 2016 7741 ZIEBELL CT

July 5, 2016 7737 MCCONNEL DR

July 7, 2016 7741 ZIEBELL CT

RADIO READ METER INSTALL: (2)

July 5, 2016 6416 BRANDO LOOP

July 5, 2016 6420 BRANDO LOOP

REGISTER CHANGE OUT: (9)

METER CHANGE OUT: (3)

July 25, 2016 7551 SUNRISE BLVD

July 25, 2016 7565 WICKHAM DR

July 27, 2016 6065 SUNDALE WAY

July 6, 2016 5617 MARIPOSA AVE

METER BOX MAINTENANCE: (2)

July 4, 2016 7640 MARIPOSA AVE

July 26, 2016 7415 LARKSPUR LN

HYDRANT REPLACEMENT: (4)

July 13, 2016 5900 YEOMAN WAY

July 14, 2016 5830 PRIMROSE DR

July 20, 2016 7700 FARMGATE WAY

HYDRANT INSTALL: (1)

July 27, 2016 5810 MERLINDALE DR

HYDRANT REPAIR: (1)

July 27, 2016 8429 SUNRISE BLVD

AGENDA ITEM: OM-1

CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
 

OPERATIONS MANAGER'S REPORT TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS

AUGUST 9, 2016 REGULAR MEETING

SUBJECT

STATUS

REPORT DATE

: OPERATIONS MANAGER'S REPORT

: Information Item

: August 1, 2016

July 21, 2016 8420 PYRACANTHA CT

MAIN REPAIR: (1)



July 26, 2016 8431 HIALEAH WAY

Total Count: 32

SERVICE RAISE/LOWER: (1)

SERVICE/SADDLE REPLACEMENT: (4)

VALVE EXERCISE: (1)

July 26, 2016 6130 CALIENTE CT

VALVE LOCATE: (2)

July 13, 2016 7801 ANTELOPE RD

SERVICE REPLACEMENT: (1)

July 7, 2016 7675 PLEIDES AVE

July 25, 2016 7793 NELSON LN

July 13, 2016 5849 SUNRISE VISTA DR

July 18, 2016 5941/43 MOSS CREEK CIR

July 28, 2016 6925 MITCHELL CT

July 7, 2016 8140 WALNUT FAIR CIR

July 26, 2016 8431 HIALEAH WAY

8400 PYRACANTHA CT

July 11, 2016 5525 KINGSWOOD DR

July 26, 2016

WATER ANALYSIS REPORTS:

Bacteriological testing has met all California Department of Public Health requirements.

72 samples were collected with no positive results.



SUBJECT : 2016 WATER SUPPLY - PURCHASED & PRODUCED

STATUS : Information Item

REPORT DATE :August 3, 2016

PREPARED BY : Brian M. Hensley, Water Resources Supervisor

 

OBJECTIVE:

Report on annual water supply including comparison with prior years and current 5 - 10% voluntary reduction 

directive.

Month 2013 2014 2015

Surface Ground Total Total 

Water Water Water Water

Purchased Produced Monthly Annual

acre feet %

Jan 602.52 602.39 570.05 463.53 76.07 539.60 539.60 -62.92 -10.4%

Feb 606.36 450.96 511.52 387.51 97.02 484.53 1,024.13 -184.75 -15.3%

Mar 819.55 612.20 725.95 442.62 74.94 517.56 1,541.69 -486.74 -24.0%

Apr 1,029.73 737.30 761.02 609.95 67.86 677.81 2,219.50 -838.66 -27.4%

May 1,603.43 1,190.07 869.08 882.03 97.46 979.49 3,198.99 -1,462.60 -31.4%

Jun 1,816.73 1,548.66 1,065.10 1,270.95 72.81 1,343.76 4,542.75 -1,935.57 -29.9%

Jul 2,059.21 1,622.10 1,184.95 1,418.32 126.25 1,544.57 6,087.32 -2,450.21 -28.7%

Aug 1,924.28 1,477.49 1,188.18

Sep 1,509.82 1,275.11 1,069.78

Oct 1,297.42 1,030.74 918.67

Nov 911.55 682.48 589.6

Dec 700.94 563.15 519.57

Total 14,881.54 11,792.65 9,973.47 5,474.91 612.41 6,087.32 6,087.32

89.94% 10.06%

acre feet

AUGUST 9, 2016 REGULAR BOARD MEETING

CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
OPERATIONS MANAGER'S REPORT TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS

2016

AGENDA ITEM: OM-2

2013

to

Year-to-Date

Comparison

acre feet



AGENDA ITEM:  OM-3 
 

CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT 

 
DISTRICT STAFF REPORT TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

AUGUST 9, 2016 REGULAR MEETING 
  

 

 

SUBJECT           : SURFACE WATER SUPPLY 
STATUS          : Information Item 
REPORT DATE      : August 3, 2016 
PREPARED BY      : David M. Gordon, Operations Manager 
 

 

OBJECTIVE: 
Receive status report on surface water supplies available to the District.  
 
BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS: 
As of midnight on August 2, 2016, storage in Folsom Lake was at 469,125 acre-feet, 48 percent of the total 
capacity of 977,000 acre-feet. This is about 68 percent of historical average for this date.  This represents a 
decrease in storage of 222,436 acre-feet in the past month.  
 
The District’s total water use during the month of July 2016 (1544.57 acre-feet) was 25.0% below that of 
July 2013 (2059.21 acre-feet).    
 
CHWD continues to assist with preserving surface water supplies in the Lake by operating its groundwater 
wells. All District wells (Bonita, Mitchell Farms, Palm, Skycrest, Sylvan and Sunrise) remain operational 
and are being operated on a rotational, or as-needed, basis.     
 

 

 



Folsom Lake
Conditions
(as of Midnight - August 2, 2016)

Data Updated 08/03/2016 11:46 AM

Folsom Lake

Current Level: 469,125 AF

48%
(Total Capacity)

| 68%
(Historical Avg.)

Folsom Lake Levels: Various Past Water Years and Current Water Year, Ending At Midnight August 2, 2016

Historical Average Total Reservoir Capacity 1976-1977 (Driest) 1977-1978 1982-1983 (Wettest) 2014-2015

Current: 2015-2016

Oct 1 Nov 1 Dec 1 Jan 1 Feb 1 Mar 1 Apr 1 May 1 Jun 1 Jul 1 Aug 1 Sep 1

Water Year (October 1 - September 30)

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

350,000

400,000

450,000

500,000

550,000

600,000

650,000

700,000

750,000

800,000

850,000

900,000

950,000

1,000,000

F
o

ls
o

m
 L

a
k

e
R

e
s

e
rv

o
ir

 L
e

v
e

l 
(A

F
)

 469,125 AF

Total Reservoir Capacity: 977,000 AF



AGENDA ITEMS:  AGM 1-2 
 

CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT 
 

ASSISTANT GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
AUGUST 9, 2016 REGULAR MEETING 

 

 
SUBJECT           : ACTIVITIES AND PROGRESS REPORT 
STATUS          : Information Item 
REPORT DATE      : August 2, 2016 
PREPARED BY      : Hilary M. Straus, Assistant General Manager  
                                    Rex W. Meurer, Water Efficiency Coordinator 
 

 
Significant assignments and activities for the Assistant General Manager (AGM) and District 
Administrative, Customer Service and Water Efficiency staff are summarized below.  
 
AGM-1 WATER EFFICIENCY PROGRAM UPDATE 
Water Efficiency Program activities during the month of July 2016 included: 
 

• 10 ultra-low-flush toilet rebates for the month of July 2016. A total of $7,350 in rebates has been 
provided to customers’ year to date.   
 

• For the period of July 2016, no High Efficiency Clothes Washer (HECW) rebates were 
processed.  Year-to-date, 9 HECW rebates were processed by SMUD for District customers.   
 

• 87 water waste calls were received during the month of July. 12 reports of water waste were 
received through the CHWD’s Drought Resources web page. A total of 87 contacts (mostly 
visits to customers’ homes and phone calls) have been completed based on these reports.   
 

• The following table summarizes the R-GPCD values for CHWD to date: 
 

Month R-GPCD 
January       2015 75 

February 83 

March 108 

April 117 

May 129 

June 163 

July 176 

August 172 

September 160 

October  140 

November 82 

December 75 

January 2016     80 

February   77 

March 77 

April 107 

May 155 



AGM Activities and Progress Report     Page 2 
August 9, 2016 Board of Directors Meeting 

 
 

Month R-GPCD 
June 213 

July Not Available 

 
*This information is submitted monthly to the State Water Resources Control Board. 

 
The District is currently in a Stage 2 Water Alert Modified.  Customers are being asked to voluntarily 
cutback water use by 5%-10% through 2016.  A Public Outreach campaign promoting the Stage 2 Water 
Alert regulations is underway.  The messaging is intended to educate District customers about Stage 2 
modified regulations. The following are included in the Public Outreach effort: 
 

 A bill stuffer promoting the Stage 2 Water Alert 

 The District’s website  

 FaceBook  

 Phone message recording 

 Waterline Newsletter 

 
• CHWD along with the City of Citrus Heights, California American Water Company and 

Sacramento Suburban Water District held an Ecolandscape class on July 23rd.  The class was 
held at the Citrus Heights Community Center.  The class covered “right plant-right placement” 
and best irrigation practices for customers.  There was a demonstration on how to convert spray 
irrigation to drip, outreach materials, raffle prizes and refreshments. Over 30 people participated 
in the class. 

 

• The Top 20% water reduction campaign is focusing on the 72 no response/non- compliant “Bad-
Bad’s”.  These are the customers who did not submit a water reduction plan and did not meet 
their water reduction target.  The 72 “Bad-Bad’s” are being contacted by District staff.  
Customers are offered a water efficiency review and left with water conservation program 
information and literature.  Currently the program has generated 27 water efficiency reviews for 
the “Bad-Bad’s". 

 

ACTION TAKEN # of Responses # Compliant # Non-
Compliant 

Responded with Plan 96 84 12 

    

No Response with Plan 86 14 72 
 

* All Top 20% customers saved a total of 42% as compared to 2013. 

 AGM-2 FINANCE UDPATE 
Finance staff has completed an update of CHWD’s regional rate survey/comparison. This information 

will be available to the Board as it considers various rate options at its August 29th and September 13th 

budget workshops. Budget preparation is well underway, and during the next few weeks, staff will be 

updating the Rate Model to generate options and accompanying analysis associated with each rate 

option for Board consideration.  



AGENDA ITEM:  GM-1 
 

CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT  
 

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
AUGUST 9, 2016 REGULAR MEETING 

 

 

 

SUBJECT           : EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION 
STATUS          : Information Item 
REPORT DATE      :  August 3, 2016 
 

 

The following District employees were recognized for superior attendance, outstanding customer service 
and quality of work during the month of July 2016. 
 
OPERATIONS and WATER QUALITY DEPARTMENT  
Tim Cutler: Superior Attendance   
 
Robyn Evans: Superior Attendance  
 Work Quality – Safety Meeting Presentation on “Safety Data Sheets” – 2016 Jul 07

   
James Ferro:  Customer Service – Compliments from customer at 7675 Pleides Ave re: Service  

Replacement – 2016 Jul 07 
Customer Service – Compliments from customer at 5525 Kingswood Drive re: meter  

box leak – 2016 Jul 07   
 
Jarrett Flink:  Superior Attendance 
 
Gil Garcia:  Superior Attendance 
    
Brian Hensley: Superior Attendance     
   Work Quality – Board Meeting Presentation on Public Health Goals – 2016 Jul 07 
 
Rick Jimenez:  Superior Attendance 
    
Mike Mariedth: Superior Attendance 
 
Chris Nichols:  Superior Attendance 
 
Nick Spiers:  Superior Attendance  
 
Jason Tupper:  Superior Attendance 
   Work Quality – Saturday testing of Backflow Prevention Assembly at Small Business  

Administration Office on Sylvan Road – 2016 Jul 02 
 
ADMINISTRATION and WATER DEMAND MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT 
 
Brady Chambers: Superior Attendance 
   Work Quality – 2 hours+ overtime work on Move-in/Move-outs due to short staff –  

2016 Jul 06 
   Work Quality – Discovered a shortcut in the billing system that allowed more  

efficient entry or meter reads on an account with 54 connections – 2016 Jul 07  



Kelly Drake:  Superior Attendance  
   Work Quality – Completion of MSDS Online SDS Update Project – 2016 Jul 
   
Dana Mellado:  Customer Service – Thanks from out-of-state owner for prompt response to tenant’s  

report of a leak at 6525-27 Mauna Way – 2016 Jul 13 
 

Rex Meurer: Superior Attendance   
   Work Quality – Safety Meeting Presentation on “Lightning Safety” – 2016 Jul 21 
 
Beth Shockley: Superior Attendance  
 
Desiree Smith:  Superior Attendance 
   Work Quality – 2 hours+ overtime work on Move-in/Move-outs due to short staff –  

2016 Jul 06 
 
Lisa Smoot:  Superior Attendance 
 
Susan Sohal:  Superior Attendance 
   Work Quality – Citrus Heights Water District Financing Corporation Reports –  

2016 Jul 
Work Quality – Treasurer’s Support Work – 2016 Jul 

 
PROJECT MANAGEMENT and ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT   
 
Missy Pieri:  Superior Attendance 
 
Borey Swing:  Superior Attendance 
 
John Spinella:  Superior Attendance 
   Work Quality – 6.5 hours of overtime work to provide Friday inspection of Mariposa  

Avenue 12” Water Main Replacement Project – 2016 Jul 22 
 
 

 
 
 
 



AGENDA ITEM:  GM-2a 
 

CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT  
 

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
AUGUST 9, 2016 REGULAR MEETING 

 

 

SUBJECT           : GENERAL MANAGER’S TASK LIST 
STATUS          :  Information Item 
REPORT DATE      :  August 3, 2016 
 

 

Significant assignments and activities for the General Manager (GM) are listed on the attached list.  I will be 
available at the meeting to answer questions and/or provide additional details. 
 

 

 
 



Citrus He ig hts Wa te r Distric t

Ge ne ra l Ma na g e r's Ta sk List

Da te : 8/ 3/ 2016

TASK LIST NO. 128 Aug ust 9, 2016 GM- 2b

Ca te g ory
Gre e n: Ite ms tha t a re  substa ntia lly c omple te , de le g a te d or 

a wa iting  a c tion by othe rs

GM Hrs to  

Comple te

Wa iting  on or 

de le g a te d to :
De a dline Note s

Wa te r Distrib utio n

Distric t Ca p ita l Pro je c t 2011-02: Be e c h Ave  Me te re d  

Inte rc o nne c tio n with Ora ng e  Va le  WC 5 OVWC 15-Oc t-2016

Dra ft Ag re e me nt se nt 

to  OVWC - a wa iting  

c o mme nts



Citrus He ig hts Wa te r Distric t

Ge ne ra l Ma na g e r's Ta sk List

Da te : 8/ 3/ 2016

Ca te g ory Re d: Top Priority Ite ms
GM Hrs to  

Comple te

Wa iting  on or 

de le g a te d to :
De a dline Note s

Ad ministra tio n 2016 Distric t Ele c tio n 8-No v-2016

Divisio ns One  (4 ye a r) 

a nd  Two  (2 ye a r)

Ad ministra tio n Anne xatio ns: Livo ti Trac t (4 o f 8) 40 Churc hill 15-Se p -2016

Ad ministra tio n Anne xatio ns: Sac rame nto  Co unty  (4 o f 8) 40 Churc hill 15-Se p -2016

Ad ministra tio n Anne xatio n o f Ve rne  Trac t Te rrito ry  to  SJWD 40 Churc hill 15-Se p -2016

Ad ministra tio n Fisc a l Ma na g e me nt Po lic y - Disb urse me nt o f Fund s 2 Eve ry 3 Ye a rs 11-Oc t-2016

Huma n Re so urc e s Sa la ry Sc he d ule  Up d a te 40 Eve ry 3 Ye a rs 13-Se p -2016

La st Up d a te d  Ja n 

2014, Up d a te  b y July 

2016 fo r 2017 Bud g e t

Huma n Re so urc e s Re tire  from Citrus He ig hts Wa te r Distric t Churc hill 17- Nov- 2016 Pla nne d Da te

Wa te r Distrib utio n Future  CIP Pro je c ts Summary  Binde r (2 o f 8) 20 GM/ Eng r De p t 13-Se p -2016 Ed it in Pro g re ss

Wa te r Distrib utio n

Te c hno lo g y  Impro ve me nts: Do c ume nt Manag e me nt /  

Pro je c t Manag e me nt /  Asse t Manag e me nt /  Ease me nts (7 

o f 8) 30 Smo o t/ wing / e tc 15-De c -2016

Wa te r Sup p ly SJWD Sho rtag e  Po lic y  Co st Update  (1 o f 8) 10 SJWD 15-Jul-2016 MOU in De ve lo p me nt

Wa te r Sup p ly SJWD Who le sale  Wate r Supply  Ag re e me nt 30 Churc hill/ Alb ie tz 15-Oc t-2016 SJWD GM Re vie wing

Wa te r Sup p ly SJWD Hyd ra ulic  Mo d e l Ma inte na nc e  Ag re e me nt 5 Churc hill 15-Se p -2016

Wa te r Sup p ly Site s Re se rvo ir Ad vo c a c y 40 Stra us/ Rie hle

HOURS SUBTOTAL: 297



Citrus He ig hts Wa te r Distric t

Ge ne ra l Ma na g e r's Ta sk List

Da te : 8/ 3/ 2016

Ca te g ory Ora ng e : Hig h Priority Ite ms
GM Hrs to  

Comple te

Wa iting  on or 

de le g a te d to :
De a dline Note s

Exte rna l Influe nc e s

Re g io na l Wa te r Autho rity Bo a rd  & Exe c utive  Co mmitte e : 

Org a nize  File s 20 Churc hill 1-No v-2016

Wa te r Distrib utio n

Distric t Ca p ita l Pro je c t 2011- 01: Fa ir Wa y 8" Me te re d  

Inte rc o nne c tio n with Ro se ville 20 Churc hill 1-No v-2016

To  CHWD Bo a rd  a nd  

C ity Co unc il in 

Se p te mb e r

Wa te r Distrib utio n

Distric t Ca p ita l Pro je c t 2012- 09: Blo sso m Hill Dr 6" Me te re d  

Inte rc o nne c tio n with Ro se ville 20 Churc hill 1-No v-2016

To  CHWD Bo a rd  a nd  

C ity Co unc il in 

Se p te mb e r

Wa te r Distrib utio n

Distric t Ca p ita l Pro je c t 2012- 10: Cre stmo nt Dr 6" Me te re d  

Inte rc o nne c tio n with Ro se ville 20 Churc hill 1-No v-2016

To  CHWD Bo a rd  a nd  

C ity Co unc il in 

Se p te mb e r

Wa te r Qua lity Cro ss Co nne c tio n Ord ina nc e  Up d a te 5 Churc hill 1-Oc t-2016

Wa te r Qua lity Priva te  We ll Po lic y 5 He nsle y 1-Oc t-2016

Wa te r Sup p ly Ca l Am Inte rc o nne c tio n Ag re e me nts 5 Churc hill

Wa te r Sup p ly Lo c a te  a nd  Se c ure  a d d itio na l We ll Site s 40 GM /  OPS /  WRS o ng o ing

HOURS SUBTOTAL: 135



Citrus He ig hts Wa te r Distric t

Ge ne ra l Ma na g e r's Ta sk List

Da te : 8/ 3/ 2016

Ca te g ory Ye llow: Me dium Priority Ite ms
GM Hrs to  

Comple te

Wa iting  on or 

de le g a te d to :
De a dline Note s

Ad ministra tio n Ma ste r Pla n Up d a te : RFP fo r Eng ine e ring  Se rvic e s 0 PM/ Eng r De p t

Ad ministra tio n Po lic ie s & Pro c e d ure s: Write  Missing  Po lic ie s 32 o ng o ing

Wa te r Distrib utio n Distric t Ca p ita l Pro je c t 2015- 30: Po p la r Ave nue  14"  10 Be nne tt Eng r 1-Oc t-2016 De sig n Pha se

Wa te r Distrib utio n Distric t Ca p ita l Pro je c t 2015- 31: Ba ird  Wa y 12" 10 Are a  We st Eng r 1-Oc t-2016 De sig n Pha se

Wa te r Distrib utio n Distric t Ca p ita l Pro je c t 2015-40: Ma rip o sa  Ave nue  12" 10 Civil Eng r Co nst 20-Aug -2016 Co nstruc tio n Pha se

Wa te r Distrib utio n

Me te ring  Pro je c ts: Me te r Insta lla tio n Po lic y Co o rd ina tio n 

with C ity o f CH 2

Wa te r Distrib utio n Ea se me nts: Be rry La ne 2

Wa te r Distrib utio n Ea se me nts: Ro ss 2

Wa te r Sup p ly Find  Pro p e rty De e d s: We lls Ave . We ll Site 10 1-Oc t-2016 Disc uss with C ity o f CH

HOURS SUBTOTAL: 78



Citrus He ig hts Wa te r Distric t

Ge ne ra l Ma na g e r's Ta sk List

Da te : 8/ 3/ 2016

Ca te g ory Blue : Non- Priority Ite ms
GM Hrs to  

Comple te

Wa iting  on or 

de le g a te d to :
De a dline Note s

Huma n Re so urc e s Sa la ry Sc he d ule  Up d a te Eve ry 3 Ye a rs 13-Se p -2019

Huma n Re so urc e s GASB 45 Ac tua ria l Ana lysis Eve ry Ye a r Co mp le te  fo r 2016

Ad ministra tio n 2016 Distric t Ele c tio n 10 8-No v-2018 Divisio ns Thre e  (4 ye a r) 

Ad ministra tio n Co nflic t o f Inte re st Co d e  - Bie nnia l Up d a te 15 FPPC 31-De c -2016 Bie nnia l Up d a te

Ad ministra tio n Divisio n Bo und a ry Ana lysis 0 2020 Ce nsus 1-Jun-2021 Re vie we d  Ma y 2011

Ad ministra tio n

Citrus He ig hts Wa te r Ta ke rs Assn - Tra nsc rib e  Me e ting  

Minute s 20 Sta ff 1-No v-2016

1917-1922 Ha nd writte n 

Minute s o f Pre d e c e sso r 

to  CHID /  CHWD

Ad ministra tio n Bo a rd  o f Dire c to rs Po lic ie s "3000 Se rie s" 10 Eve ry 4 Ye a rs

La st c o mp le te d  14 Fe b  

2012

Huma n Re so urc e s

Co ntinue d  Ed uc a tio n: Ob ta in a nd  d o c ume nt c o nta c t 

ho urs fo r Wa te r Tre a tme nt Op e ra to r T2 Ce rtific a tio n 0 Re ne we d 1-Se p -2017 16 to ta l ho urs ne e d e d

Huma n Re so urc e s

Co ntinue d  Ed uc a tio n: Ob ta in a nd  d o c ume nt c o nta c t 

ho urs fo r Wa te r Distrib utio n Op e ra to r D5 Ce rtific a tio n 0 Re ne we d 1-Ja n-2018 36 to ta l ho urs ne e d e d

Huma n Re so urc e s Bie nnia l Ethic s Tra ining 0 Eve ry 2 Ye a rs 7-Ma y-2017

Co mp le te d  a t ACWA 

Co nfe re nc e   - 7 Ma y 

2015

Huma n Re so urc e s Bie nnia l Se xua l Ha ra ssme nt Tra ining 0 Eve ry 2 Ye a rs 5-Ma y-2017

Co mp le te d  a t ACWA 

JPIA Co nfe re nc e   - 5 

Ma y 2015

Wa te r Sup p ly Pa tto n Ave  We ll Pro p e rty Disp o sa l Ho ld No  Inte re ste d  Pa rtie s

Wa te r Sup p ly Wa tso n Wa y We ll Pro p e rty Disp o sa l Ho ld No  Inte re ste d  Pa rtie s

Wa te r Sup p ly Pub lic  He a lth Go a l Re p o rt & Pub lic  He a ring 1 OM, WRS 12-Jul-2019 Eve ry 3 Ye a rs

Wa te r Distrib utio n PIV Pho to s & Lo c ks 3

HOURS SUBTOTAL: 59

HOURS TOTAL: 569



AGENDA ITEM:  GM-3 
 

CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT  
 

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
AUGUST 9, 2016 REGULAR MEETING 

 

 

 

SUBJECT           : LONG RANGE BOARD AGENDA 
STATUS          : Information Item 
REPORT DATE      :  August 2, 2016 
 

 

In an effort to plan workloads and schedules, Executive staff has been maintaining a Long Range Board 
Agenda, and the August update is provided below. Please let General Manager Churchill know if you have 
any questions or comments. 
 

Meeting Date Item Assigned To 
   

August 29, 2016  Budget and Rates Study Session Straus/Sohal 

September 13, 2016 Budget and Rates Workshop Straus/Sohal 

 Roseville Intertie Agreement Churchill 

 Compensation Study/Salary 
Schedule 

Update/Policies/Career 
Ladders/Employee PERS Pick-up 

Churchill/Straus/Smoot/Sohal 

 Engineering/Design Firm Award of 
Contract – Corporation Yard 
Improvements 

Dietrich 

 CIP Adoption Churchill/Dietrich/Godon/Straus/Sohal/Pieri 

October 11, 2016 Water Charges and Fees—
Presentation of Proposed Updates 

Straus/Sohal 

November 8, 2016 2016-17 Committee Assignments Churchill 

 2016-17 District Officers Churchill 

November 15, 2016 Operating and Capital Budgets Straus/Dietrich/Gordon 

 Water Rates, Charges & Fees Straus/Sohal 

 Capacity Fees Straus/Sohal 

 Water Shortage Charges Straus/Sohal 

December 13, 2016   

 
 







  

-1- 

 
 

CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT FINANCING CORPORATION 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

July 12, 2016 
 
The Annual Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Citrus Heights Water District 
Financing Corporation was called to order at 7:33 PM by President Dains. Present were: 
 

Allen B. Dains, President 
Carol F. Sheehan, Vice President 
Raymond A. Riehle, Director 
Robert A. Churchill, Secretary 
Hilary M. Straus, Chief Financial Officer 

  Susan K. Sohal, Accounting Supervisor 
David M. Gordon, Operations Manager 
Paul A. Dietrich, Project Manager 

  Beth Shockley, Management Services Specialist/Deputy Board Clerk 
Brian M. Hensley, Water Quality Supervisor/Chief Operator 
 

VISITORS  
 

Nicholas L. Spiers, Water Distribution Specialist 
 
Confirmation / Appointment of CHWD Financing Corporation Officers 
 
The Board confirmed and appointed the following Citrus Heights Water District 
Financing Corporation Officers upon a motion by Director Sheehan and a second by 
Director Riehle and carried 3-0 with all Directors voting yes. 
   

President   Allen B. Dains  Reconfirmed as President 
Vice President   Caryl F. Sheehan Confirmed as Vice President 
Director   Raymond A. Riehle Confirmed as Director 

 
 Chief Financial Officer Susan K. Sohal Appointed as CFO 
 Secretary   Hilary M. Straus Appointed as Secretary 
 
Status of the CHWD Revenue Refunding Certificates of Participation, Series 2010 
 
Accounting Supervisor Sohal reported that the Citrus Heights Water District Financing 
Corporation (the Corporation) was formed in July 2000 for the purpose of issuing the 
$7.9 million in Certificates of Participation (COPs) for the financing of water meter 
retrofits and well improvements.  Section 3.5 of the Bylaws for the Corporation requires 
that an annual meeting be held each year. In June 2010, the Corporation authorized the 
refunding of the Series 2000 COPs with the issuance of the Revenue Refunding COPs, 
Series 2010, in the amount of $5,155,000. The purpose of the meeting is to review 
information or developments related to the COP financing and to fulfill a legal 
requirement for California non-profit corporations. 
 
Included with Directors' agenda packets was a copy of the Continuing Disclosure Annual 



  

-2- 

Report for the Revenue and Revenue Refunding COPs. This report is a requirement of 
the District's COP issuance and is generally required for all publicly-traded securities. It 
is filed with Nationally Recognized Municipal Securities Information Repositories where 
these reports are made available to the public. The Annual Report shows the status of the 
principal on the COPs and other financial and operating information about the District as 
of December 31, 2014. The balance outstanding on the COPs at that time was 
$2,530,000.00.  
 
The District made two installment payments in 2015 on the Series 2010 COPs for a total 
of $569,200; $450,000.00 as repayment of principal on the COPs; and $119,200.00 in 
interest on the debt. The District has five years of payments remaining on this 10-year 
debt refunding as of December 31, 2015.  The District’s AA bond rating on its debt was 
most recently reaffirmed in September 2015 during a review done by S&P every three 
years.  The rating is a continued affirmation of the District’s strong financial policies and 
financial stability.  
 
The debt under the San Juan Water District (SJWD)/CHWD COPs, originally issued in 
2003, was not issued under the authority of the CHWD Financing Corporation, since it 
was done under the authority of the San Juan Suburban Water District Financing 
Corporation. However, staff has typically reported on the status of the SJWD/CHWD 
debt issuance at the time of the CHWD Financing Corporation Annual Meeting.  
 
CHWD participated with SJWD in a refunding of the 2003 Series debt that was 
completed in May 2012. The new debt issuance is identified as the SJWD/CHWD 
Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2012A. This refunding resulted in a savings to SJWD 
and CHWD over the remaining life of their respective debt. The principal amount 
outstanding for CHWD on the Series 2012A bonds as of December 31, 2015 was 
$2,020,000.00.  CHWD’s annual principal and interest payments on the Series 2012A 
debt ranges from $167,287.00 to $175,937.00 annually over the remaining life of the debt 
through its retirement in 2033.  
 
 
Directors and staff discussed the District’s debt issuances.   
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no other business to come before the Board, the meeting was adjourned at 
7:43 PM by President Dains. 
 
APPROVED:      
 
 
 
                                                                                                                     
ROBERT A. CHURCHILL   ALLEN B. DAINS, President 
Secretary     Board of Directors 
Citrus Heights Water District  Citrus Heights Water District 
Financing Corporation Financing Corporation 






	Agenda CHWD 2016 Aug 09
	CC-1 CHWD July-12-2016 Draft Minutes
	CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
	BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING
	PM Dietrich presented a report on the following activities during the month of May 2016 by the Project Management and Engineering Department.  New values or projects noted in bold italics
	PROPOSED DISTRICT CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

	APPROVED:

	CC-2 Accounts Receivable Analysis July 2016
	AR Analysis

	CC-3 Assessor's Cancellation July 2016
	Sheet1

	CC-4 Treasurers Report July 2016
	Sheet1

	CC-5 Fund Balance Report July 2016
	Sheet1

	CC-6 Ops Expense July 2016
	Summary-acct

	CC-7 CIP Worksheet July 2016
	Summary

	CC-8 Warrants July  2016
	Sheet1

	CC-9 Cal Card Summary
	July 2016

	N-3a RWA Regional WRP Agreement
	CC-10 2016 Continued Education
	CC-11 Admin Bldg Acceptance w Attachments
	CC-12 CH City Hall Easement Acceptance
	CC-13 Call For Special Meeting
	O-1 Strategic Plan for 2017 (Staff Report and Strategic Plan)
	O-1 Staff Report--Strategic Plan
	O-1 Accompanying Doc--CHWD 6-26-16 Strategic Plan Summary, 7-3-16 v.1
	Citrus Heights Water District
	STRATEGIC PLAN
	SESSION SUMMARY
	Sunday, June 26, 2016
	designed and facilitated by
	Laura Mason-Smith





	N-1 Training Report 2016 Aug 09
	AGENDA ITEM:  N-1
	CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
	DISTRICT STAFF REPORT TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS

	N-2 Funds and Reserves Policy Amendments
	N-2a Funds and Reserve Policy Amendments Attachments
	N-3 RWA Regional Water Relaibility Plan
	N-4 Limerick, Dublin, Tipperary, Galway Paving Bids
	N-5 SJWD Draft Wholesale Financial Plan & Rate Study
	N-5a SJWD 150 Day Notice Letter 2016 Aug 02
	N-5b SJWD Draft Financial Plan 2016 Jul 29
	PM Report 08_09_2016
	CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
	PROJECT MANAGER’S REPORT TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	AUGUST 9, 2016 REGULAR MEETING

	PM-4 PROPOSED DISTRICT CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS


	OM-1 Operations Manager's Report 8-9-2016
	OM-2 2016 Water Supply Monthly Board Report
	Sheet1

	OM-3 Water Supply 8-9-2016
	AGM 1-2 Aug 9
	AGENDA ITEMS:  AGM 1-2
	CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT
	AGM-1 WATER EFFICIENCY PROGRAM UPDATE
	AGM-2 FINANCE UDPATE


	GM-1 Employee Recognition 2016 Aug 09
	GM-2a General Manager's Task List 2016 Aug 09
	GM-2b General Manager's Task List 2016 Aug 09
	Sheet1

	GM-3 Long Range Board Agenda
	Agenda CHWD Financing Corp Meeting 2016 Aug 09
	N-1 CHWD Financing Corp Draft Minutes 7-09-2016
	CITRUS HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT FINANCING CORPORATION
	BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
	ADJOURNMENT
	APPROVED:

	Agenda CHWD 2016 Aug 09 Special Meeting

